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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 52 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS
LIMITED (CIN: L24249MH1972PLC0O15544) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sambava
Chambers, 4" Floor, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 on Thursday, 22* August 2024 at 3.00 P.M. o
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thercon.

2. Re-Appointment of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080) as a director, liable to retire by
rotation, who had offered himself for re-appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business
3. The continuation of directorship of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 0312080), aged 76 years as a

‘Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director’ of the Company.

To approve the continuation of directorship of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080), aged 76 years as
a ‘Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director' of the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation and had
offered himself for re-appointment, in terms of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to consider and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) /
amendment(s) / re-enactment(s) thereto), approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the
continuation of directorship of Mrs, Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080), aged 76 years, as a ‘Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director’ of the Company, liable to retire by rotation and who had offered
himsell for re-appointment.”
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4. Authorization for Related Party Transaction
To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition to the Resolution passed through Special resolution
in Annual General Meeting held on 24® August, 2023 and pursuant to the Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, and Regulaton 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations™) read with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (“the Act”), and subject to
such other regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarifications and Laws (including any statutory
modifications or re-enaciment thereof for the time being in force), and such other approvals, sanctions,
consents and permissions as may be deemed necessary consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company or any Committee thereol, to enter into contracts/agreements as defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 with the related parties up to maximum per annum amounts with effect from April
1, 2024, as appended herein below:

Name of Related Parties / Companies | Transaction defined u's 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013

(Rs. in Crores)
Name of Related Parties Sale of any goods | Purchase of any Tk Payment of )
Companics and materials and | goods and Expenses and

Service materials Reimbursement Paid

On Actual basis, exempted being in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. (Subject
| to a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned against the name of the Company).

G Amphray Pharmaceuticals Pvt Lid 15 20 ' -
| Triochem Laboratories Pyt Lid 15 20 -
’smbl.rrmh Plasto chkagmg Pyt Ltd 10 20 -
| PROPRIETORSHIP FIRM: '
G Amphray Laboratories 60 | 40 | 20

DIRECTORS/KMPs/RELATIVES OF DIRECTORS & KMPs OTHER FIRMS & COMPANIES in which Director
have some interest as per the provisions of section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013

M_r\_(-m;:c K. Dmm s .
Mr. Rajesh B Deora . = 5
Mr. Rajiv R. Deora . . x
‘Ramu M. Deora HUF . ' . .
Ramu §. Deora HUF P .

Any Contract or transaction with all the above parties for bL]].ll'lﬂ or {}lhi.'ﬁ'-’lﬁf dlspnsmg of, or buying,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board/Committee be and is
hereby authorized to agree, make, accept, and finalize all such terms, condition(s), modification(s), and
alteration(s) as it may deem fit within the aforesaid limits and the Bnardeﬁommnec is also hereby
authorized to resolve and sertle all questions, difficulties or doubts lh:t may. msaxmth regard to such
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payment and to finalize and execute all agreements, documents, and writings and to do all acts, deeds, and
things in this connection and incidental as the Board/Committee in its absolute discretion may deem fit
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end
and intent that they shall be deemed to have been given approval thereto expressly by the authority of this
resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commitiee thereol, be and are
herchy authorized to execute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in relation to the
and other incidental documents, make applications to regulatory and government authorities for the
purposes of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions required by the Company and to
do all acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution.”

NOTES:

L.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting
("AGM") is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himsellherself and the proxy need not
be @ Member of the Company. The proxy form, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's
Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalfl of companies,
societies, partnership firms, ctc. must be supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable,
issued on behalf of the nomination organization. The proxy form is annexed to this notice.

Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50
and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. If a proxy is proposed to be appointed by Members holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
Members.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of name
will be entitled to vote.

Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an attendance slip which is annexed to this notice. The
Members/Proxies artending the meeting are kindly requested to complete the enclosed attendance slip and
affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.

Route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 52™ Annual General meeting is given at the end
of the Notice.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts
concerning the business under Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors
have considered and decided to include Item No. 3 and 4 as given above, as Special Business in the
forthcoming AGM as they are unavoidable in nature. However, for Item No. 2 and 3 relevant details of
director seeking re-appointment by way of retire by rotation as required under SEBI LODR Regulations and
Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is
annexed to this Notice. .
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The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their sharcholding, maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection by the
Members at the Annual General Meeting.

In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2023-24 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company/Depositories. The Notice conveying the 52™ AGM has been uploaded on the website of
the Company at www.tricchemproducts.com under ‘Investor Relations’ section and may also be accessed
on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The Notice is also available
on the website of CDSL at www evotingindia.com,

Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will
remain closed from Thursday, August 15, 2024, to Thursday, August 22, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of 52* AGM.

a) For Shares held in electronic form: To all the beneficial Owners as at the end of the day on Wednesday,
August 14, 2024, in the list of beneficial owners to be furnished by NSDL and Central Depository
Service (India) Limited (*CDSLY); and

b) For Shares held in physical form: To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving
effect to valid transmission and transposition request lodged with the Company as of the close of
business house on Wednesday, August 14, 2024.

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities held
in physical form. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares, Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to dematerialised their holdings. Members may contact RTA i.c. Link
Intime India Pvt. Ltd, Address: C-101, 1% Floor, 247 Park, L. B. S, Marg Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083,
Maharashtra at mthelpdesk(@linkintime.co.in for assistance in this regards. Members may also refer to
Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs") on the Company’s website at
https:/‘www.triochemproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations/pdfs/requenltv-asked-quesations-£;

1697 pdf

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the Company/
Registrar to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details
for payment of dividend, etc. A form for capturing additional details is available on the Company's website
under the section 'Investor Relations” tab ‘Investor Service' at https:/www.triochemproducts.com/investor-
investor-relations aspx#year=2022-23 as also attached to this Annual Report. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled-in form to the Company or to the Registrar in
physical mode as per instructions mentioned in the form. Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to submit the details to their respective DPs only and not to the Company or RTA.
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Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate
detils, ete. to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at
it helpdesk(elinkintime.co.in in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio number.
Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the
securitics market.

Nomination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in a single name
and who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form
No. SH-13/15R-3. If a member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he
may submit the same in Form No. SH-14/ISR-3. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
submit the forms to M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, the Company's Share Registrars and Transfer Agent.
Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain form from their respective Depository Participant,

Consolidation of Physical Share Centificates: Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order
of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios
together with the shares certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share
certificate will be issued 1o such Members after making requisite changes.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company
of any change in address or demise of any Members s soon as possible. Members are also advised not to
leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time.

- Process for registering e-mail address 1o receive this Notice along with credentials for remote e-voting:

a) Online update on web portal at hups: dinkintime.co.in/EmailReg Email Register html

b) For Physical sharcholders: please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of sharcholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card).
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email to
mi.helpdesk(@ linkintime.co.in

¢) For Demat sharcholders: please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary 1D or NSDL-
16 digit DPID+ CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
artested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (sclf-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
Company/RTA email to mt.helpdeski@linkinume. co.in

d) The company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and provide the login credentials to the above-
mentioned sharcholders,

. Remote e-voting before/tduring the AGM:

a) Pursuant 1o the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulaﬂﬂufhm Regulations, as
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may be amended, and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 52 AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited ('CDSL’) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remote e-voting system on the date of the 52™ AGM will be provided by CDSL.

Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in electronic form as on the cut-off
date of Wednesday, August 14, 2024, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. A person who is not a
member as on the Cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. A person whose
name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail of the facility of remote e-voting before
as well as during the AGM. Any non-individual shareholders or shareholder holding securities in
physical mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, August 14, 2024, may
obtain the User 1D and Password by sending a request at helpdesk evoting(@cdslindia com.

Individual sharcholders holding securities in demat mode, who acquire shares of the Company and
become a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off
date i.e. Wednesday, August 14, 2024, may follow the login process mentioned below in point 18,

The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, August 19, 2024, at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ends on
Wednesday, August 21, 2024, at 5.00 pm (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL
for voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

The voting rights of the Members (for voting through remote e-voting before/during the AGM) shall be
proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off
Wednesday, August 14, 2024

The remote e-voting module during the AGM shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes after the
conclusion of the Meeting.

Mrs. Ragini Chokshi, Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. No. 1436) has been appointed by the Board of
Director of the Company as Scrutiniser for providing facility 1o the Members of the Company to scrutinise
the remote e-voting process as well as voting through Poll paper at the Meeting, in a fair and transparent
manner.

The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at
the Annual General Meeting, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through e-voting in the presence of two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company. Scrutinizer shall, submit within the time stipulated
under the applicable laws, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if
any to the Chairman or 2 person authorized by him in writing who shall counter-sign the same. Thereafter,
the Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing shall declare the results of the voting forthwith,
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The Results declared along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.triochemproducts.com under the section ‘Investor Relations’ tab ‘Financial Information: Annual
General Meeting / Report / Return’ and on the website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared by
the Chairman/Authorized person and the results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange where
the shares of the Company are listed.

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

a) The remote remote e-voting period begins on 19" August 2024 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on 21* August
2024 at 05.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 14" August 2024 may cast their vote
¢electronically, The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Shareholders who
have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

b} Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBIHO/CED/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation
44 of Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders' resolutions. Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs)
providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user 1Ds and passwords by the shareholders,

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login eredential, through
their demat accounts/websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

¢) Interms of SEBI circular no, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

| Type of Login Method
sharcholders
Individual i } Users of who have opted for CDSL's Easi / Easiest facility, can login IEr_D;gh
Shareholders their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
Holding e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URLs for users to

| securities in login to Easi / Easiest are: htips:/'web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
Demat mode www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
with CDSL 2) After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting |

Menu. On clicking the e-voting menu, the user will be able to see his/her
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3)

holdings along with links of the respective e-Voting service provider i.c.
CDSL/NSDL / KARVY / LINK INTIME as per information provided by Issuer
/ Company, Additionally, we are providing links to e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ site
directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at hups:fweb.cdslindia. com/myeasi, Registration/ EasiRegistration
Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP where the e-Voting is in progress during or before the AGM.

Individual
Shareholders
holding sccuritics
in demat mode
with NSDI.

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” whuch is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Yoting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Yoting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting,

Il the user is not registered for [DeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at htps: ‘eservices nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at
https:eservices.nsdl com SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: htips: 'www.evoting nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on 4 mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login™ which s available under
‘Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User 1D (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected o NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 1o e-
Voting service provider website [or casting your vote during the remote ¢-
Voting period or joining virtual | meceting & voting during the meeting,

Individual
Shareholders

You can also login using the Inmn credentials of your demat account through

vour Depository Participant registered with NSDLICDSL for e-Voting facility.

(holding securities | After successful login, you will be able to sée &Voting option. Once you click
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in demat mode)
login through
their Depository
Participants

on e-Yoting option, you will be redirected 1o NSDL/CDSL Depository site after |
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Yoting service provider name and you will be redirected
to e-Voting service provider's website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting,

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related
to login through Depository i.¢. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

| Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
holding securities in Demat | helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk evoting(@ cdslindia.com

mode with CDSL

or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22.2305854243.

Individual Sharcholders Members facing any technical issue in Iirg;in can contact NSDL
holding securities in Demat | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting (e nsdl co.in or

maode with NSDI,

Call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Login method for e-Voring for shareholders other than individual sharcholders & physical

sharcholders.

1) The sharcholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
2)  Click on “Sharcholders™ module-
3) Now enter your User [D
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP D followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
¢ Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

OR

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASLEASIEST e-services, you can logdin at
https:/www.cdslindia com from Login - Myeasi using vour login credentials. Once you successfully

log-in to CDSL's EASUEASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast
your vote electronically,

4)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) I you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Sharcholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by
Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
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Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank Details | recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

OR e [fboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
Date of Birth enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as
(DOB) mentioned in instruction (v).

7)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

8) Sharcholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
sceeen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach "Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are cligible 1o vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

9)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

1) Click on the EVSN for TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

11) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

12) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

13) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click
on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

14) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here 1o print” option on the Voting
page.

16) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User 1D and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

17) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting. The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from
the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively.

e) Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians - Remote Voting
1) Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to fog on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
2) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting(@ edslindia.com.
3)  After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account for which they wish to vote on.
4) The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.
5) A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, il any, should be uploaded in PDF format in-the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same. o~ N\
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1) Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address
investor(@ triochemproducts.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

19. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

20.

21.

a2

a)

b)

The procedure e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote
e-voling,

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

a)

b)

9]

For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy ol PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email Id.

For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-
16 digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) o
Company/RTA email Id.

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository

For assistance / queries for E-voting etc;

a)

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting{@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be address to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25® Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an
email to helpdesk ecoting(tvedsindia.com or call on 022-2358542/43.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

a)

Members may avail dematerialization facility by opening Demat Accounts with the Depository
Participants of wither National Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India)
Limited and get the equity share certificate held by them dematerialized. The ISIN No. of the Company
is INE331E01013 AT
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b) Members may also note that an electronic copy of the 52* Annual Report including Notice along with
attendance slip and proxy form will be available on the Company's website at
www.tricchemproducts.com Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to
receive such communication in physical form, upon making such a request for the same free of cost.
For any communication, the sharcholders may also send their request to the Company's investor E-
mail Td: investor@triochemproducts.com

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

e
/gAQ Q_\g © A Lt = &
(race R Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Director
DIN: LH}SIEIHI DIN: (0312369

CIN No.: L24249MH 197 2PLCO15544

Place: Mumbai; Dated: 28 May 2024

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
Email: investor(iwtriochemproducts.com;

Website: www triochemproducts.com

Phone No.: 91 22 22663150,

Fax No.: 91 22 22024657
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Annexure to Notice
Item No.2

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and pursuant to clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2) the details of the Directors
sceking appointmentre-appointment at the 52* Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

| Name Of Director Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora
Director Identification Number | 00312080
Designzr_:éﬂn Non-Executive Director -
Age" 76 Years
Qualification BA.
Expertise - | Business environment and vast experience in - general
management and leadership, ctc. has been assets to the
Company.
| Date of first appointment in the current | 30" March 2015
designation
Shareholding in the Company as on 31% | 36,000
March, 2024
ﬁirmurships and Committee r mcmbcrshipﬁ Nil -

held in other companics as on 31 March
2024 (Excluding Private Companies)

' Relationships between Directors and Key | Mr. Ramu S. Deora (DIN 00312369) (Husband)
Managerial Personnel Mr. Rajesh R. M:EDIN 00312316) (Son)

No. of Board Meetings attended during the | 4 of 4
financial year 2023-24.

Terms and conditions of re-appointment As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the
Company on the 49" Annual General Meeting held on 25"
September 2021, Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora has been appointed
as a Non-Executve Directors, liable to retire by rotation.

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The Board of Directors proposed the re-appointment of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora as Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at
Item no. 2 of the Notice and explanatory statement for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Mecting.

Except Mrs. Grace R. Deora, Mr. Ramu 8. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R. Deora and their relatives, no other Director
or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the
aforementioned resolution for re-appointment of Mrs. Grace R. Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company, expect to extent of their sharcholding, if any, in the Company.
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Annexure to Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’), the following Explanatory Statement sets out
all material facts relating to the Business mentioned under TItem no. 3 of the accompanying Notice dated 28
May 2024.

Item No. 3

Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora, age 70, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. In
accordance with Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a Non-Executive
Director who has attained the age of seventy-five years after April 1, 2019 shall be appointed/reappointed as a
non-executive director unless a special resolution is passed to that effect in which case the explanatory
statement annexed to the Notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for appointing such a person.

Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has exceeded the age of
75 years and is retiring by rotation at this Annual General Meeting,

The relevant details of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora seeking continuation of his directorship subject 1o approval by
the shareholders by a special resolution under Ttem No. 3 of the Notice, as required under Regulation 36(3) of
the Listing Regulations read with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant accounting
standards are given below:

1) Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director at
the 49" Annual General Meeting held on 25 September 2021, and she is liable to retire by rotation.

2} As per Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Regulations), which came into effect from April 1, 2019
provides that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a non-
executive director who has attained the age of seventy five vears unless a special resolution is passed to
that cffect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate
the justification for appointing such a person.

3) Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora, aged 76 years, has deep knowledge and experience in a business environment
and vast experience in general management and leadership, ete. She was also associated in various other
companies, spanning over 45 years, Mrs. Grace Deora has spent 40 years in the field of industrial
development and management.

4) His brief profile is given below:

Name Of Director Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora

Director Identification Number 00312080

Designation Non-Executive Director

Age 76 Years —
Qualification BA LAWY

L =)
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Expertise Business environment and vast experience in general
management and leadership, etc. has been assets to the
Company.

Date of first appointment in the current 30" Maech 2015 i

designation

Shareholding in the Company as on 31% | 36,000

March, 2024

Directorships ~ and Committee | Nil

memberships held in other companies
as on 31" March 2024 (Excluding
Private Companies)

Relationships between Directors and | Mr. Ramu §. Deora (DIN Uﬂﬁ_lziﬁg} (Husband)

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora (DIN 00312316) (Son)

No. of Board Meetings attended during | 4 of 4

the financial year 2023-24.

Terms and conditions of re- | As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the
appointment Company on the 49" Annual General Meeting held on 25°

September 2021, Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora has been
appointed as a Non-Executive Directors, liable to retire by
rotation.
Details of proposed remuneration | Nil

5)  The Board of Directors is ol the opinion that Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora has been an integral part of the Board,
has provided valuable insights to the Company and possesses relevant expertise and deep knowledge and
experience in administration, industrial development & management, strategy leadership, Finance,
[nvestment, etc, His guidance in the past has been notable and supportive to the Company in dealing with
complex matters. Accordingly, it is felt that his association as non-executive director will be beneficial and
in the best interest of the Company. In line with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Regulations), your directors
recommend his appointment as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director at the 52™ Annual General
Meeting by way of Special resolution and that he is liable to retire by rotation.

6) The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Special Resolution as mentioned at item no. 3 of this
Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

Except Mrs. Grace R. Deora, Mr. Ramu §. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R. Deora and their relatives, no other Director
or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the
aforementioned resolution for re-appointment of Mrs. Grace R Deora as 4 Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company, expect to extent of their sharcholding, if any, in the Company.

Item no. 4

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to obtain consent of the Board and prior
approval of the members by Special Resolution in case certain Related Party Tfahsﬁgummead such sum as

IR L uabai |3 )
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is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect to transactions entered into by
the Company in the ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis. Though the Company always does the
business with its related parties at arm length and in ordinary course of business but there may be some
transactions done in the interest of the Company and for which your approval is required under the provisions
of the Act.

The proposal outlined above is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolution
setting out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the said
resolution expect to extent of their shareholding in the company or any other interest as Director or
shareholder or partner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

—

QA Qe qﬂ-ﬂ—""f:

Grace R. Deora Ramu S. Deora
lYirector Dvirector
DIN: 0312080 DIN: 00312369

CIN No.: L24249MH1972PLCO15544

Place: Mumbai; Dated: 28" May 2024

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
Email: investor(idtriochemproducts.com;

Website: www.triochemproducts.com

Phone No.: 91 22 22663150

Fax No.: 91 22 22024657
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Registered Office: 4™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150
Fax: 00 91 (22) 22202 4657 E-mail: info@amphray.com
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Wehsite: www.triochemproducts.com Corporate ldentity Number: 124249MH1972PLCO15544

BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear Members,

Your directors have gate pleasure in presenting the 52* Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

1. RESULTS OF OUR OPERATION AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

a) Financial Highlights

The audited financial statement of the Company as on March 31, 2024, are prepared in accordance with
the relevant applicable IND AS and Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(“Act™).

Amount in Rs. Lakhs except EPS|

e Particulars For the Year ended
March 31, March 31,

! 2024 2023

' Revenue from Operation - . .
Other Income 102.96 2775

“Total Income 102.96 27.75
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (8.38) (106.49)

" Less: Finance Cost - ‘ .

Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense 8.97 10.50 |
Profit before exceptional items and tax (17.35) | (@ 1_6921_
Exceptional Items (115.65) .
Profit Before Tax B (133.00) (116.99)

- Less: Tax Expense (31.67) (28.48)
Profit for the periﬁfl from continuing operations (101.33) (88.51)
Profit before tax from discounted operations -

Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations - -

" Profit for the period (101.33) (88.51)

- Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 403.63 (56.43)

Total Comprehensive Income 403.63 (56.43)

" Opening balance in Retained Earnings 101441 | 1,102.92
Closing balance in Retained Earnings Sarodha994.99 1,014.41

2\
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b)

¢)

d)

c)

* Previous year's figure has been recast / restated. The above figures are extracted from the audited
standalone financial statements of the Company as per the India Accounting Standards (IND AS).
Equity shares are at par value of Rs. 10 per share.

Overview of Company's Financial Performance and State of Affairs:
During the financial vear 2023-24, revenue from operation is Rs, Nil. The loss after tax for the current
vear is Rs. 101,32 lakhs against loss of Rs.88.51 lakhs in the previous year.

The Company has temporarily reduced activity after the Covid-19 pandemic. The business requires
personal presentation & relationship building has taken a tremendous hit & is unlikely to see any
possihility of revival in the immediate future, business from the regular customers is shrink, we do not
see significant improvement. Therefore, the Company has temporarily reduced activities till a clearer
picture emerges.

The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitgating the impact of the challenges being
faced in the business, The Company is working towards being resilient in order to sail through the
current situation. It is focused on controlling the fixed costs, maintaining liquidity and closely
monitoring the supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing facilities to-restart smoothly. The market
is expected to be stable during the end of FY2024-25, with the expectation of an improvement in the
market conditions during the vear, the Company will endeavor to perform better than last year.

As regards 1o infrastructure, Your Company's head office and factory are adequarely equipped
provide complete support to the customer. Internal control systems have been well established and
cost consciousness in factory operation will lead to improved profitability in the long run.

The Company has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations, and we are also making regular
pavments to our suppliers, employees, and other concerned persons. The liquidity position of the
company is in a comfortable zone. Your Directors are confident that the company will improve the
performance in the current vear

Projects And Expansion Plans

The Company assesses the future infrastructure requirements and continuously invests in the same on
a needy basis. During the financial year under review the Company has not spent any amount towards
capital expendirure.

Dividend

Since there is loss, the directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as “Annexure A™ and the
same is posted on the Company's website at following the link:

hitps:www. triochemproducts. com/uploads Investor-relations pdis/dividend-distribution-policy-23-
1720.pdf

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) e
Fayod ._R
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Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF).

Transfer to Reserves
The Board does not propose to transfer any amount to general reserve. The Board of Directors have
decided 1o adjust the entire amount of loss for FY 2023-24 in the profit and loss account.

Insurance
All properties and insurable interests of the Company including building, plant and machinery and
stock have been fully insured.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the yvear under review, the Company has made investment as on March 31, 2024, are set out in
Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. Further, the Company has not given any loans or
corporate guarantee or provided any security covered under the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements Made with Related Parties

Prior omnibus approval is obtained for related party transactions which are of repetitve nature and
entered in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. All related party transactions
are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval,

All Related Party Transactions entered during the vear were in Ordinary Course of the Business and at
Arm's Length basis. No material related party transactions were entered during the Financial Year hy
vour Company. Accordingly, no disclosure is made in respect of related party transactions, as required
under section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form ADC-2 is not applicable. Members may refer to note no. 31
of the financial statements which set out related panty disclosures pursuant to IND AS-24.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting Financial Position Between The End of The
Financial Year and Date of the Report

There are no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of the Company
that have occurred between the end of the financial vear 1o which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report i.e. between 317 March 2024 1o 28" May 2024

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the publicmembers during the year under review
within the meaning of sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and accordingly, no amount on account of principal
or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on 31st March 2024,

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
During the vear under review, no application was made, or any prmr:cdmg wis pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

et
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During the year under review, no one time settlement was done with any of the Banks or Financial

Institution.

n) Subsidiarics, Joint Ventures & Associate
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associated companies, therefore
disclosures in Form AOC-1 are not provided in this report. The policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16{1)(c) of the Listing Regulation is not applicable to the Company,
The Company is also not a subsidiary of any other company

o) Change in The Nature of Business
There were no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year.

2. CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

a) Authorized Share Capital
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2024 was Rs.25,00,000/ (Rs. Twenty-Five
Lakh Only) divided into 2,50,000 (Two Lakh Fifty Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital
The Paid-up Equity share capital as at March 31, 2024 was Rs.24,50,000/~ (Rs. Twenty-Four Lakh Filty
Thousand only) divided into 2,45,000 (Two Lakh Forty-Five Thousand) Equity shares having face value
ol Rs.10/- each fully paid up. There was no change in the paid-up share capital of the Company during
the financial year 2023-2024,

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights nor

granted any stock neither options nor sweat equiry.

3. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a) Industry Structure and Development

)

(2)

Global Pharma Industry Review

The world pharmaceutical industry is one of the top performing industries globally. New
medications are constantly being developed, approved and marketed, resulting in significant
market growth. Other market growth drivers include the aging population, as seniors use more
medicines per capita and there is a rise in the prevalence and treatment of chronic diseases. The
revenue in this sector is anticipated to exhibit an annual growth rate (CAGR 2024-2028) of 6.19%,
resulting in a market volume of US$1,470.00bn by 2028.

https:fwew.statista. com/outlook/hmo/pharmaceuticals worldwide

Indian Pharma Industry Review
The Indian pharmaceutical industry ranks third globally in pharmaceutical production by volume
and is known for its generic medicines and low-cost vaccines. India is one of the biggest suppliers
of low-cost vaccines in the world. Major segments of Indian Pharmaceutical Industry include
generic drugs, OTC medicines, bulk drugs, vaccines, -::::rnum—r&g:\amh & manufacturing,
biosimilars and biologics. Because of the low price and mgb quz]z{y {ndlan medicines are
preferred worldwide, making it *pharmacy of the world”, Z'I|
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The pharmaceutical industry in India is currently valued at $50 Bn. India is a major exporter of
Pharmaceuticals, with over 200+ countries served by Indian pharma exports. India supplies over
50% of Africa's requirement for generics, —40% of generic demand in the US and —25% of all
medicine in the UK. India also accounts for —60% of global vaccine demand, and is a leading
supplier of DPT, BCG and Measles vaccines, 70% of WHO's vaccines (as per the essential
Immunization schedule) are sourced from India.

hrtps: www_investindia gov.inssector pharmaceuticals

The Indian pharmaccutical industry is projected to grow at a CAGR of over 10% to reach a size of
1'S$ 130 billion by 2030.
hitps: www ibef org industry pharmaceutical-india

(3) Key Treads in the Pharma Industry

(4

(5

)

e

Changing Government and Regulatory Landscape: Tightening of policy and faster regulatory
approvals are increasing competition, requiring companies to be right ‘first time'. With increased
vigilance from regulators, a focus on quality assurance and control has become even more critical.

Shifting Industry Dyvnamics: shift from “Make in India” w “Develop in India”, increased
globalization, 4 focus on value addition versus pricing, and change from a competitive to
collaborative mind-set

Emergence of New Go-to-Market Models: managing multiple channels and consumers is becoming
increasingly critical. The rising role of pharmacists vs. physicians, and patient empowerment are
drivers.

Digital: Backbone of Transformation- To remain competitive, companies need to demonstrate
agility in responding to the changing relationship dynamics triggered by new digital players and
invest in data and analvtics capabilities.

Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient

The Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API) is the wvial, biologically active compound in
pharmaceutical products driving therapeutic effects. Whether chemically synthesized or sourced
from nature, APls play a pivoral role globally in the pharmaceutical supply chain, serving as the
foundation for drug development and manufactunng As the pharmaceutical industry evolves
towards cutting-edge therapeutics and innovative delivery systems, the demand for sophisticated
APls is likely to increase.

Global API Market
The global active pharmaceutical ingredients market size was estimated at USD 23747 billion in
2023 and is expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.75% from 2024 1o
2030, Advancements in Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API) manufacturing, growth of the
biopharmaceutical sector, and an increase in geriatric population are among the key drivers of API
market. An increase in prevalence of chronic diseases, such as -:a.rdmmsmla: diseases and cancer,
15 anticipated to bﬂ{ﬁ[ market gmrmh
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Favourable government policies for API production, along with changes in geopolitical situations,
are boosting market growth. The API market is undergoing immense changes due to supply chain
disruption by COVID-19. Countries such as India are being preferred over China for the export of
API owing to geopolitical situations and the demand to reduce dependence on China for AP
products. Furthermore, governments of many countries have formulated plans and granted
incentives to promote the production of APL

(6) Indian AP1 Market
The India active pharmaceutical ingredients market size was estimated at USD 18.29 billion in
2023 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 7.7% from 2024 to 2030.
https:/www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis india-active-pharmaceutical-ingredients-

market-report

The key factors boosting the growth of the active pharmaceutical ingredients market are the rising
drug research, rapid technological advancements and development activities for drug
manufacturing, the increasing importance of generics, and the increasing uptake of
biopharmaceuticals. However, the unfavourable drug price control policies across various nations
and high manufacturing costs are expected to hinder the market's growth.

(7) Business Overview
Triochem Products Limited has been manufacturing and providing Active Pharmaceutical
[ngredients (API) since its inception in 1972, The Company has temporarily reduced activity after
the Covid-19 pandemic till a clearer picture emerges.

The Company is headquartered in Mumbai, and it has its manufacturing facility at Ambernath in
Maharashtra. The facility has all the required certifications from Indian authorities.

b) Opportunities, Threats, Outlook, Risks and Concerns
(1) Opportunities
The Indian pharmaceutical industry ranks third globally in pharmaceutical production by volume
and is known for its generic medicines and low-cost vaccines. India is one of the biggest suppliers
of low-cost vaccines in the world. The company is well placed to grow as the demand for the
product grows with the fact that this product is the fundamental product.

{2) Threats & Concerns
There is significant competition from other Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) manufacturers
both within India and foreign, however the markets and volumes are quite large. Further, the
government's actions towards price controls on pharmaceutical products might affect the price of
the products in the coming times. The ongoing geopolitical crises have led o supply chain
disruptions and rising cost of raw materials. Your company is also prone to these near-term risks.

The pandemic’s impact on the APl market. The APl marker encountered significant challenges
during the recent global health crisis. Disruptions in worldwide supply chains and logistical
hurdles, including transportation restrictions and delays, unpﬂled Ih%el}r acquisition of raw
materials and the distribution of finished forms. h{cireov;'f ﬂﬁngent rfglﬂamry measures and
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increased scrutiny of the pharmaceutical supply chain introduced complexities, resulting in delays
in production and approval processes. These collective challenges not only impacted production
capacity but also highlighted the need for resilience and adaptability in the API market, but there
are vulnerabilities due to the regional dominance and lack of global spread,

(3) Strengths

The company with existing registrations and regulatory approvals has an established customer
hase in India and in various foreign countries that will enable it to further enhance their growth.

(4) Outlook
The rise in the aging population is one of the major drivers of the pharmaceutical API
manufacturing market. As the aging population increases, the demand for pharmaceutical drugs
also increases. API acts as 4 specialty drug in these medicines to cure a particular disease. For
instance, in October 2022, according to an article shared by WHO, a Switzerland-based specialized
agency of the United Nations responsible for international public health, 80% of senior citizens
will reside in low and middle-income nations by 2050

The rise in chronic conditions is expected to propel the pharmaceutical APl manufacturing market
going forward. Chronic conditions, also known as chronic diseases, refer 1o long-term health
conditions that last [or extended periods, often for a person's entire life, and typically cannot be
cured completely. The quality, effectiveness, and safety of the medication depend largely on the
API used. Pharmaceutical APl manufacturing helps to produce essential medications for managing
chronic diseases. Or instance, in 2023, according to the National Library of Medicine, a US-based
government medical library, by 2035, nearly 36% of US adults aged 50 and older are projected to
have at least one chronic condition, with this number anticipated to rise to almost 48% by 2050.
Therefore, the rise in chronic conditions is driving the pharmaceutical API manufacturing market.

The outlook is positive for the company considering its product mix, market conditions and the
expected increase in the demand of product. The focus is to operate with the highest Environment,
Health and Safety standards, while improving efficiencies, unit costs and ensuring business
continuity.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company’s defined organizational structure, documented policy guidelines and adequate internal
controls ensure efficiency of operations, compliance with internal policies, applicable laws and
regulations, protection of resources and assets and accurate reporting of financial transactions. The
Company continuously upgrades these systems in line with best available practices.

Human Resources

Human resources continue to be one of the critical assets of the organization. Attracting relevant talent
remains the Company's key focus, It pays special attention to training, welfare and safety of its people,
strengthening human capabilities.

Investor Relations and Engagement Hayr 2N
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Investor Relations (IR) is playing an increasingly important role in today’s volatile world in enabling
companies to manage investor expectations. The objectives of Company’s investor relations activities
are to boost confidence and develop a long-term relationship of trust with stakeholders including
Sharcholders, Investors & Analysts, through true and fair disclosure of information. To pursue these
objectives art all times, your Company continuously discloses necessary information,

f) Segment wise or Products wise Performance; Financial Performance and Ratios
The Company is a single segment Company engaged in the business of Bulk Drugs. During the year
under review, due 1o temporarily reduced activity due to the impact of Covid-19 pandemic. The
revenue from operation 1s Rs. Nil because of temporarily reduce in manufacturing activities. A detailed
financial overview of the Company for the FY 2023-2024 is available in the first page of the Board's
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

g) Key Financial Ratio
m During the year under review, there has been no significant change in return on net worth and key
financial ratios as compared to the immediately previous financial vear except the current ratio.

All the key linancial ratios have been disclosed in notes to financial statement.

Reasons where variance is more than 25% The Current ratio has increase due to the amount invested
into Fixed Deposit in previous year was withdrawn and reinvested into non-current investments.

h) Cautionary Statement
The management discussion and analysis report contain statements which are forward-looking based
on assumptions. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied due o the nsk and
uncertainties which have been detailed in this report. Several factors as listed in this report could make
significant difference to the Company's operations. Investors, therefore, are requested to make their
own independent judgments and seek professional advice before taking any investment decisions.

™ 4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

a) Report on Corporate Governance

In terms of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, states that, The Compliance with the corporate
governance provisions as specified in regulation 17, [17A,] 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to (i) [and (1)] of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule
V shall not apply, to listed entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore
and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial vear
We wish to inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 317
March 2024 paid up equity capital of the company is Rs.24.50 lakh which is less than ten crores and
net worth Rs.14.62 Crore which is less than rupees twenty-five crore, which is within the limit as
prescribed in Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,

Hence, due to applicability of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange. Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, thtmrpm—%h@\?nmcc provision are
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not applicable to us, Further, when the provision of the said regulation becomes applicable to the
Company at a later date, the same shall be complied with, within six months from the date on which
the provisions become applicable to the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility shall not be
applicable to companies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crore or more or turnover not
exceeding Rs.1,000 crore or net profit not exceeding Rs.5 crore or more during any financial year, as
on the last day of the previous financial year. In this connection, we wish to inform you that in respect
of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31% March 2023 neither the net worth
exceeds Rs.500 crores or turnover exceeds Rs.1,000 crore or net profit exceeding Rs.5 crore, Hence,
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility would not be
applicable.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

(1) Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board received a declaration from all the directors under section 164 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 that none of the directors of the company is
disqualified under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) or under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of non-executive and independent
directors, to maintain the independence of the Board functions of governance and management.
No changes have taken place in the Composition of the Board from the date of last Annual Report.

The composition of the Board of Directors is fully complied with the provision of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, including the appointment of requisite
number of Independent Directors and Woman Director. As on 31 March 2024, the Board
comprised of two (2) Non-Executive Independent Directors and four (4) Non-Executive Non-
Independent Directors, including Woman Director is a Non-executive Non-Independent Directors.
The Board has no institutional director.

The Company believes in a well-balanced and diverse Board which enriches discussions and
enables effective decision-making. The Board of the Company is diverse in terms of qualification,
competence, skills, and expertise which enables it to ensure long-term value creation for all the
stakeholders. The Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuring that the rights of all stakeholders
are protected,

(2) Changes During the Year
No changes have taken place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) from
the date of the previous Annual Report.

(3) Retirement by Rotation and Subsequent Re-appointment
In accordance with the provision of Section 152 and Gthg applc;lbk\pmmmns if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {f\ppﬂmuﬁcm :md Quahﬁ-:auun of Directors)
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Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being
in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company. Mrs, Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080)
(Non-Executive Non-Independent) Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the Listing
Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Independent Directors and the
Managing Director of the Company are not liable to retire by rotation.

The said re-appointment terms and conditions thercof shall be approved by the members at
ensuing AGM as per the provision of the Act and Listing Regulations, Accordingly, a resolution is
being proposed in the notice of 32* AGM for the approval of the members of the company refer
to item no. 2 and 3.

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting issued by Institute
ol Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). brief particulars of the directors proposed to be
appointed/re-appointed are provided as an annexure to the notice convening the AGM.

Independent Directors with Materially Significant, Pecuniary, or Business Relationship
with the Company

There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-Executive/Independent Directors
and the Company. A declaration to this effect if also submitted by all the Directors at the beginning
of each financial year.

Declaration of Independent Directors & Adherence to The Company's Code of Conduct for
Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section
149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the critena of independence laid down in
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with declaration received pursuant to sub rule
(3) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, They
have also furnished the declaration pursuant to Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
affirming compliance to the criteria of Independence as provided under Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Based on the declarations and confirmation of the Independent Directors and after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same, the Board of Directors recorded their opinion that all
the Independent Directors are independent of the Management and have fulfilled all the
conditions as specified under the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Further, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the
Company’s code of conduct.

3 - \ € \ ' / ._:;,'



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED A

CHEM

Based on the famework of internal financial control and compliance system established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal. Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors,
including audit of the internal financial control over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditor and
the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board Comminee, including the Audit
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during the financial year 2023-24.

Accordingly, pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(¢) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) lor the time being in force) with respect
to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, to the best of their knowledge and ability, it is herchy
confirmed that for the vear ended March 31, 2024:

(1) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 11 to the Act, have
been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(2) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judlgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of alfairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and of the profivloss of the Company for the
financial year from April 1, 2023 ro March 31, 2024.

(3) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitics,

(4) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

(5) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively, and.

(6) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Committees of The Board
In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companices Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had the following Three (3) Commitiees
as on 31% March 2024, along with their composition, number of meetings and attendance at the
meetings are provided:
(1) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee functions in accordance with Section 177 of the Act, 2013 read with the
Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and its Charter adopted by
the Board. The term of reference of the Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee
are financially literate and have experience in financial management. The Audit Committee
comprises of the following directors and Attendance of Dumomat th?ﬁonumuce Meetings held

"r.'||'._
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during the financial year ended 31 March 2024, No changes have taken place in the members of
the Committees from the date of last Annual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting
Held | Attended
Me. Sunil S. Jhunjhunwala Chairman | Non-Executive - 4 4
Independent Director
| Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia | Member | Non-Executive - 4 4
Independent Director
Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member | Director 4 4

There have been no instances during the vear when recommendations of the Audit Committee
were not accepted by the Board,

{2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ('NRC') functions in accordance with Section 178
of the Act, Regulation 19 of the Regulations and its Charter as adopted by the Board. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following directors and Antendance
of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March 2024. No
changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the date of last Annual Report.

| Name Status Category Meeting
|  Held Attended
' Mr. Sunil S. Jhunjhunwala | Chairman | Non-Executive - 4 4
Independent Director
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungajﬁ | Member | Non-Executive - 4 +
Independent Director
Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member | Director 4 +

All the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relation Commitice ('SRC') looks into various aspects of interest of
shareholders. The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents
of the Company relating to investor service and recommends measures for improvement. The
company is having a Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of the following directors
and Artendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the linancial year ended 31
March 2024. No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the date of last

Annual Report.
Name Status ' Category Meeting
Held Attended

Mr. Sunil 8. Jhunjhunwala Chairman | Non-Executive - 4 +
Independent Director

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia | Member | Non-Executive - 4 i
Independent Directoe,

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member | Director / ~ — '} 4 4

el
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All the recommendations made by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were accepted by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

f) Board meeting held during the year
(1) Board of Director
The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year. The dates on which the
meetings were held are 26™ May 2023, 14" August 2023, 4™ November 2023, and 9" February
2024. The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and
twenty days.

(2) Independent Director: Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and
Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR) Listing Regulation 2015, the independent director held their
separate meeting on 28" March 2024, without attendance of non-independent directors and
members of Management, to inter alia: All Independent directors were present in meeting,

(3) Attendance of Directors
Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31* March
2024 and at last AGM:

Name of Director Category Number of meetings | Attendance at the last AGM
(in alphabetical Held Attended | Held on 24™ August 2023
order)
Mr. Girish Kumar Non-Executive - + 4 Yes
Pungalia Independent
Mrs. Grace R, Deora | Non-Executive 4 4 Yes
Mr, Shyam Sunder | Non-Executive 4 4 Yes -
Sharma
' Mr. Sunil S, Non-Executive - 4 4 Yes
| Jhunjhunwala Independent
Mr. Rajesh R. Deora | Non-Executive 4 4 Yes
Mr. Ramu S. Deora | Non-Executive } 4 Yes

g) Evaluation of Performance of The Board, Its Committees and Directors
(1) Key Managerial Personnel (‘'KMP')
Mr. Ramu 5. Deora, Director; Mr. Puran |. Parmar, Chief Financial Officer; and Mrs. Ureca Deolekar
(name before marriage Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole), Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, are
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51), and
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulations 6(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There has been no change
in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial year.

(2) Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and Particulars of Employees
The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with-the Nomination and Remuneration
policy formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19
W
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of the listing Regulations (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-cnactments(s) thereof for
the time being in Force). The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) in
respect of Directors/employee of the Company is as follows:

The company director has forgone remuneration. Further no sitting fee has been paid to any
director during the financial year. The particulars of the employees who are covered by the
provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

(2) Employed throughout the year Nil

{(b) Employed for part of the year Nil

The increase in remuneration of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel is
considerably in line with the increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel. It is affirmed
that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Management Personnel and senior management
is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 10.

In terms of Section 130 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and
others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars which is available for
inspection by the members at the Registered office of the company during business hours on
working days of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting,. If any member
is interested in inspecting the same, such a member may write to the Chief Financial Officer in
advance.

h) Corporate Policies

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, mandates

the formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. The corporate governance policies are

available on the Company’s website at hups:/‘www.triochemproducts.com under the head “Investor

Relations™ Search by Year “2023-24". The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated

as needed. Key policies that have been adopted are as follows:

{1) Nomination & Remuneration Policy
The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and
the Listing Regulations. The said Policy of the Company, inter alia, provides that the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for appointment if Executive, Non-
Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of Directors on the Board of Directors of the
Company and persons in the Senior Management of the Company, their remuneration including
determination of qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other matters
as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the ume bcmg in force). The Policy is
available on the website of the Company at the fulh:!wmg an. N\
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hitps:/www.triochemproducts.com/uploads/Anvestor-relations/pdis/nomination-and-

remuneration-policy-26.pdl

Directors Appointment and Remuneration Policy

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed
a Policy for selection and appointment of Directors & Senior Management and their remuneration.
The Policy of the Company on Directors appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other martters
provided under Section 178(3) of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations is available
on the wehsite of the Company at the following link:
hitps:/www.trinchemproducts.com/uploads Investor-relations/pdfs/appointment—evaluation-ol-
board-of-directors-kmps-and-senior-management-personn-27. pdf

Performance Evaluation of The Board, Its Committees and Directors

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the
company has implemented a system of evaluating performance of the Board of Directors and of
its committees and individual directors on the basis of evaluaton criteria suggested by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly,
the Board has carried out an evaluation of its performance afier taking into consideration various
performance related aspects of the Board’s functioning, composition of the Board and its
Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, remuneration, obligations and
governance. The performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, Chairperson and Non-
Independent Directors was also carried out by the Independent Directors in their meeting held
on 28" March 2024

Similarly, the performance of various committees, individual Independent and Non-Independent
Directors was evaluated by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the Director being evaluated)
on various parameters like engagement, analysis, decision making, communication and interest of
stakeholders.

The Board of Directors expressed its satisfaction with the performance of the Board, its committees
and individual directors.

Terms and Conditions for Appointment of Independent Director

The Board is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of the Company possesses requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise in chemicals/manufacturing industry, strategy, auditing,
tax and risk advisory services, financial services, corporate governance, etc, and that they hold
standards of integrity. They have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all
stakeholders. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters to all the Independent
Directors in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder, The terms and conditions for appointment of independent director and a sample
letter of appointment issued to the, are posted on the Company's website under the section
‘Investor Relations’ tab ‘Appointment of Non-Executive Independent Director’ at following the
link: 7 3 ten N

5-and-condition-of-
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appointment-of-independent-directors-ver02-23-1743.pdf

The Independent Directors of the Company got included their names in the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of
Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

Familiarization Programme for The Independent Directors

The Independent Directors are familiarized through various programmes on a continuing basis
including: (a) Nawre of the industry in which Company operates; (b) business model of the
Company; (c) roles, rights, responsibilities of Independent Directors etc.,

In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, familiarization programme along with
their role, rights and responsibilities as Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the
industry in which the Company operates, business model, etc. it is also display on website of the
Company at following the link:

https:/www.triochemproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations, pdis/familarization-program-for-
independent-directors-ver()2-23-1731.pdf

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of
the Board and all emplovees in day-to-day business operations of the company. The Code lays
down the standard procedure ol business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to integrity in the workplace, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. All
the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the
Code. The Code has been displayed on website of the Company at following the link:

hitps: /'www triochemproducts.com/uploads/1nvestor-relations/ pdis/directors—-senior-
management-personnel-24. pdf

Prevention of Insider Trading

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended, the Company
has adopted the Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and
Reporting of Trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives along with Code of Fair
Disclosures. The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by employees and
other connected persons has been displayed on website of the Company at following the link:
https://www.triochemproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations/ pdfs/code-of-practices—
procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-price-sensitive-1710.pdf

Related Party Transaction

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, your

Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions which is available on the website
: T

of the Company at following link:
https:/www.triochem
ver(12-23-1734. pdf
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The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place
for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

(9) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for
directors and employees in confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI
Listing Regulations, to report concerns about unethical behavior. The Company hereby affirms
that no Directoremployee has been denied access to the Chairman and Audit Committee and that
no complaints were received during the year.

The said Policy provides for (1) adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the
Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of
the Company. The Company believes in the conducts of the affairs of its constituents by adopting
the highest standards of professionalism, honest, integrity and ethical behavior, in line with the
TPL Code of Conduct ('Code'). All the stakeholders are encouraged to raise their concerns or make
disclosures on being aware of any potential or actual violation of the Code, policics, or the law.
The Company maintains a website where detailed information of the company and its products
are provided.

In order to ensure that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fair and
transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and
ethical behavior the company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. The aim of the policy is 1o
provide adequate safeguards against victimization of whistle blower who avails of the mechanism
and also provide direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in appropriate or
exceptional cases. Accordingly, “‘Whistle Blower Policy' has been formulated with a view to provide
a mechanism for the Directors and employees of the Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor
or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. The purpose of this policy is to provide
a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects employees willing to
raise 4 concern about serious irregularities within the Company.

This policy is available on the website of the Company at following link:
https:www . trioche mproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations/pd s vigil-mechanism-whistle-
blower-policy-28. pdfl

i) Annual Return
The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2024, in Form MGT-7 in accordance with Section
92(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is available
on the website of the Company at the following link:
https:/fwww.triochemproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations/pdfs/draft-annual-return-202324-

2948 pdf

By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
provide extract of Annual Return (form MGT- 9) as part of [l;e ﬁGErd\s\chnn voluntary basis is
artached as “Annexure B” form parts of the Board's Report. T x__.\
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Secretarial Standards

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on
various aspects of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Listing

The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai, The Company has paid Annual
Listing fees for the year financial year 2023-24 and 2024-25, There was no suspension on shares of the
Company during the year.

Depository Services

The Company's Equity Shares have been admitted to the depository mechanism of the National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and also the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
As a result, the investors have an option to hold the shares of the Company in dematerialized form in
either of the two Depositories. The Company has been allotted ISIN No. INE331E01013.

Shareholders therefore are requested to take full benefit of the same and lodge their holdings with
Depository Participants |DPs] with whom they have their Demat Accounts for getting their holdings in
electronic form.

Internal Financial Control and Their Adequacy

The Company has in place Internal Financial Control Systems, commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size, scale, and complexity of its operations to ensure proper recording of financial
and operational information & compliance of various internal controls, statutory compliances, and
other regulatory compliances. The internal control procedures have been planned and designed to
safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use, or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are
probably authorized, recorded, and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the
applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting
financial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and
monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company. The company continues to ensure
proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As required by the Companies Act 2013, your Company has implemented an Internal Financial Control
(IFC) Framework. Section 134(5)(e) requires the Directors to make an assertion in the Directors
Responsibility Statement that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in
existence, adequate and operate effectively. Under Section 177(4)(vii), the Audit Committee evaluates
the internal financial controls and makes a representation to the Board. The purpose of the [FC is to
ensure that policies and procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business are implemented, including policies for and the safeguarding its assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and
timely preparation of reliable financial information. The IFC implementation required all processes of
your Company to be documented alongside the controls within the process. All processes were
satisfactorily tested for both design and effectiveness during the year— —.
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The TPL code of conduct and accompanying training seeks to ensure everyone in your Company
understands how to put values into practice. Mandatory training on the Code of Conduct helps your
Company's employees gain the confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the
policies and procedures applicable to their areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all
unethical and illegal conduct, Additionally, employees are required to certify in an annual basis
whether there have been any transactions which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Code of
Conduct, Strong oversight and self-monitoring policies and procedures demonstrate your Company's
commitment to the highest standards of integrity. Your Company has also successfully complemented
its Internal Control Framework with the test of design and effectiveness of all its processes across the
organization as part of meeting the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, to ensure the existence
and effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls.

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating 1o
strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and systems. The ultimate objective being
a Zero Surprise, Risk controlled Organization.

Significant and Material Order
There are no significant and matenal orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

5. AUDIT AND AUDITORS

)

b)

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, M/s. Kanu Doshi
Associates LLP, (Firm Registration No. 104746W, W100096), are appointed as the Statutory Auditors
by the Members in the Annual General Meeting held on 26" August 2022 to hold office until the
conclusion of 55" Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2027-28.

The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors” appointment at the AGM has been omitted
pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, notified on May 7, 2018. The auditors have
confirmed their eligibility limits as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, and that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The Statutory Auditors’ comments on your Company's account for the year ended March 31, 2024, are
self-explanatory in nature and do not require any explanation. The Auditors’ Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, disclaimer, or modified opinion remarks.

Internal Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
(including any amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof [or the time being in force),
the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee, at their meeting held
on 28" May 2024 have Re-appointed M/s. Haren Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered Accountant as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25, to mn-;iu;:i‘lﬁtf:\tﬁﬂ@udu of the Company. The
Internal Auditors reports to the Audit Committee of the Boasd, which hl\t“lpé\m maintain its objectivity
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and independence, The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined by the Audit
Committee. The Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
Committee of the Board.

¢) Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Ragini
Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 1436), Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Company has received consent
from M/, Ragini Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 1436), Company Secretaries to act as the auditors for
conducting audit of the Secretarial records for the financial year ended 31* March 2024,

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR -3 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is annexed
herewith as “Annexure C” form parts of the Board's Report. There has been no qualification,
reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report.

d) Cost auditor
The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance the of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the company. Accordingly, during the
vear, maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit was not applicable to the Company.

e) Reporting of Frauds by Auditors
During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditor have reported
to the Board or Audit Commirtee, as required under Section 134 (3) (ca) and 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013, any instances of frauds committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the
details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

6. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

a) Human resources policy is aimed at having a universal and scientific method to hire the best talent in
the industry with optimum skills and aptitude required for the job. The company has always recognized
talent and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance. This requires the
management and the employees to fully understand and respect each other. On an ongoing basis the
management identifies and implements necessary measures to maintain a positive climate and improve
performance levels. The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and
imparted training at periodic intervals. The Company continued the welfare activities for the
employees, which include Medical Care, Group Insurance and Canteen Facility. To enrich the skills of
employees and enrich their experience, the Company arranges, Practical Training Courses by Internal
and External Faculty.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment
displayed by all executives’ officers and staff at all levels of the company.

b) Particulars of employees —— %N\
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The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1), 5(2) & 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including
amendment thereto, is provided in above point number 4(g)(2).

¢) Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every
individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices. It is the continuous
endeavour of the Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees
that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has adopted
a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company has arranged interactive awareness workshops
in this regard for the employees at the manufacturing sites & corporate office during the year under
review.

During the vear no complaints were received by the Internal Complaints Committee of the Company.
The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013,

This policy is available on the website of the Company at following link:
hitps:/ fwww_trinochemproducts. com/uploads Tovestor-relations/pdfs/prevention-ol-sexual-harasment-at-
workpalce-policy-78.pdl

d) Health, Safety and Environment

The Company is committed to ensure a sound Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) performance
related to its activities, products, and services. Your Company has been continuously taking various
steps to develop and adopt Safer Process technologies and unit operations. The Company has been
investing in areas such as Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error
element, Enhanced level of training on Process and Behavior based safety, adoption of safe &
environmentally friendly production process, Installation of reactors, Multiple effect evaporator, etc.
to reduce the discharge of effluents, commissioning of Waste Heat recovery systems, and so on to
ensure the Reduction, Recovery and Reuse of effluents & other utilities. Monitoring and periodic
review of the designed SHE Management System are done on a continuous basis.

¢) Industrial Relations:
Industrial relations have been cordial at the manufacturing units and corporate office of the Company.

-4

CONSERVATION OF ENERY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

a) Conservation of Energy
The information on conversation of energy stipulated under Sectipn-134(3)(m) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form A is unnt:':'f::d herewith “Annexure- D",
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b) Technology Absorption
The information on technology absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form B is annexed herewith “Annexure- D"

¢) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form C is annexed herewith
“Annexure- D7,

8. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR)

The SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 mandates the inclusion of the BRR as part of the Annual Report for the
top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization. Since the Company is not covered under the tp
1000 listed entities based on market capitalization, Business Responsibility Reporting is not applicable to
the Company.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as part of good Corporate Governance, the company has
long been followed the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in every industry, it has now become
a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing, and monitoring the
risk management plan for the company. The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed
the various risks associated with business of the Company. Such review includes risk identification,
evaluation and mitigation of the risk.

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a
pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to
achieve-with the key objectives, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk
Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues. In today's challenging and competitive
environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company
are imperative. The common risks inter alia are Regulations, competitive, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk, inter-alia, further
includes financial risk. political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy. these risks are assessed
and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

Constituting the Risk Management Committee was extended to the top 500 listed entities on the basis of
the market capitalization, the same is not applicable to our Company for the year ended March 31,2024.

The Company has implemented Risk Management Policy and the Board of Directors has prepared a
comprehensive [ramework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses to
these risks so as to minimize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board
of Directors, which is available on the website of the Company at fﬂ“mgg]tﬂk(

https:/www.triochemproducts.com/uploads Investor-relations/ gﬂg’ﬁsk -m it
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10. OTHER GENERAL DISCLOSURES:

a)

b)

g)

h)

i)

k)

Secretarial Standards: The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued
Secretarial Standards on various aspects ol corporate law and practices. The Company has complied
with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code,
2016 (IBC): During the vear, there has been no initiation of any Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (IBC),

Statement of deviation or variation: During the year. the Company has not raised / made offer by
way of Public Issue. Right Issue, Prelerential Issue, Qualified Institutions Placement (QIP) ete, and
therefore it is not applicable to the Company.

Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account: The
Company reports that no shares issued pursuant to Public Issue remains Unclaimed hence the Clause
of Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account is not applicable.

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of a one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from Banks or Financial Institutions,
along with the reasons thereof during the F.Y. 2022-23 and the date of Directors’ Report: There
was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

Significant and Material Order Passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals: During the year there
are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor
the Secretarial Auditor have reported to the Board or Audit Committee, as required under Section 134
(3) (ca) and 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of frauds committed against the
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

Listing at stock Exchange: The equity shares of the Company continue to listed and traded in BSE
Limited. The Annual Listing fees for the year financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 has been paid to the
stock exchanges. There was no suspension on shares of the Company during the year.

Dematerialization: Your Company has tied up with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Lid. (CDSL) to enable the shareholders o trade and hold share in
an electronic/dematerialized form. The shareholders are advised to take benefits of dematerialization.

Awards: Your Company has not received any Award during the financial 2022-23.

Financial Statements: As per Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations :md 1'Ji.e;clusure Huquirements.j Regulations, 2{115 {hereinnfter re[erre:l o as “Lie'ting

thereunder the Financial Statements of the Company fof lhe“ﬁﬁaneul\}rear 2020-21 have been
prepared in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards md appmvaibv the Board of Directors.
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1) The Financial statements of the Company were not revised.

m) Impairment of Assets & Capital Work-in-Progress: In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28

n)

0)

P

§)

t)

relating to “Impairment of Assets”, the company has reviewed the carrving amount of its fixed assets
as at the end of the year. Based on the strategic plans and such valuation of the fixed assets of the
company, on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.

Credit Rating: Credit Rating is not obtained as the same is not required for obtaining the credit
facilities from bank.

Key Initiatives with respect to Stakeholder Relationship, Customer Relationship, Environment,
Sustainability, Health and Safety: The Company to the maximum extent possible under various
programmers initiated by the Company, e.g. (a) The Company assists its vendors with prevention of
wastage and efficient utilization of resources. (b) All the Equipment and Machinery purchased in new
manufacturing plant are clean technology, energy efficient, etc., with numerous stakeholders working
across the Company's different locations and operations, it is difficult to estimate the percentage.

The Company has not issued any warrants, debentures, bonds, or any non-convertible
securities.

The Company has not brought back its shares, pursuant to the provision of Section 68 of Act and the
Rules made thereunder,

The Company has not failed to implement any corporate action.

Corporate Governance: In terms of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, states that, The Compliance with
the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulation 17, [17A,] 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 244,
25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) |and (1)] of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of
Schedule V shall not apply, to listed entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees
ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous
financial vear. In case of our Company as on the last audited balance sheert as at 317 March 2024 paid
up equity capital of the company is Rs.24.50 lakh which is less than ten crores and net worth Rs.14.62
Crore which is less than rupees twenty-five crore, which is within the limit as prescribed in Regulation
15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. Hence, due to
applicability of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
the corporate governance provision are not applicable to us. When the provision of the said regulation
becomes applicable to the Company at a later date, the same shall be complied with, within six months
from the date on which the provisions become applicable to the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility: The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social
Responsibility shall not be applicable to companies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crore or
more or turnover not exceeding Rs. 1,000 crore or net profit not cxcecdtng Rs.5 crore or more during
any financial year, as on the last day of the previous Fnanua} v:ar in. 'L‘;lhf; of our Company as on the
last audited balance sheet as at 31" March 2024 neither the nﬂ%rm Exﬂﬂﬂ&ﬂs 500 crores or turnover
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exceeds Rs1,000 crore or net profit exceeding Rs.5 crore. Hence, the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility would not be applicable.

u) Business Responsibility Report: The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the BRR as part of
the Annual Report for the top 1,000 listed entities based on market capitalization, the same is not
applicable to our Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

11. BANK AND CREDIT FACILITIES:

Your Directors wish 1o place on record their appreciation for the support from Company’s bankers namely
State Bank of India. The Company’s finance position continues to be robust. During the year under review,
the cash generation from operation reflect a substantial increase. This has been the Company's philosophy
throughout and ¢an be vouched for over the vears. The Company is zero debt company, The borrowings
are taken for short-term requirements.

ACENOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors of the Company wish to take the opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to the
Banks, Government Authoritics, Customers and Shareholders for their continuous guidance and support.
Further they would also like to place on record their sincere appreciation for dedication and the hard work put
in by all employees for their dedicated services.

The Directors also wish to express their gratitude to investors for the faith that they continue to repose in the
Company

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

Yous- A $o Y

—

wace R Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Dircctor Director
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Place: Mumbai
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4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
Email: investor(a triochemproducts.com

Website: www tnochemproducts.com

Phone No.: 91 22 22663150

Fax No.: 91 22 22024657




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m

CHEM

Annexure (4) to Board's Report

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1.

| E%

About the Company

I'riochem Products Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company” or “TPL™) is a Company an existing
public limited company incorporated on 17/01/1972 under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act,
1956 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at
4th Floor, Sambava Chamber, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. It has been engaged primarily in
the business of manufacturer and exporter of pharmaceuticals products, APIs and chemicals. The equity
shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE").

Objectives of the Policy

2.1. Securities and Exchange Board of India (hereinafter referred to as ‘SEBL') has, by its Notification
dated July 8, 2016, inserted Regulation 43A in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereol
for the time being in force. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Listing Regulation”)

2.2. Regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations requires the Company to formulate a Dividend
Distribution Policy which shall be disclosed in the Annual Report and on the website of the
Company.

2.3. In view of the above, the Company has lramed this Dividend Distribution Policy (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Policy’) to determine the parameters on the basis of which the Company may or
may not declare dividend.

2.4. The Policy secks to balance the objectives of rewarding the shareholders through dividends and
retaining capital to invest in the growth of the Company, while ensuring fairness, sustainability, and
consistency in distributing profit to the shareholders.

Payment Frequency

The dividend shall, subject to the parameters hereinafter described, be payable annually and shall be
declared at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors of the Company (hercinafter referred to as ‘the Board'). The Board may declare interim
dividend during any financial vear out of the surplus in the profit and loss account and out of profits of
the financial vear in which the interim dividend is sought o be declared. The Board may recommend
special dividend in vears of exceptional

Declaration of Dividend

It is the intention of the Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws, to pay dividend on the Company's
outstanding Equity Shares. The Company does not have any class of shares other than Equity Shares.

4o
b



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m

5. Parameters for Distribution of Dividend

5.1

5.2. 4

5.3.

5.4.

55

Your Company has a track record of steady dividend declaration and payment over its history. The
Board considers the vearly dividend based on the Net Profit After Tax ('PAT") available for
distribution. In addition, the Board reviews the capital expenditure needs, cash requirements for
investments in capability enhancements and future nonorganic growth initiatives.

As in the past, subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company's dividend payout will
be determined based on available financial resources, investment requirements and taking into
account optimal sharcholder return. Based on the above, the Company will endeavour to maintain
the steady level of dividend per share over the medium term.

Circumstances under which the shareholders of the Company may or may not expect

dividend:

The Sharcholders may ordinarily expect dividend if the Company has made profits during the

current year. Recommending dividend out of profits of previous financial years or out of retained

earnings shall be at the discretion of the Board, subject to the compliance with the Companies

(Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. The Board may

not recommend a dividend if:

5.3.1.  Proposed expansion plans require higher allocation of capital; or

5.3.2.  Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely impact free cash flow; or

5.3.3. The Company undertakes any acquisitions or investments including in joint ventures, new
product launches, erc., requiring significant capital outflow; or

5.3.4. Incase of proposal for buyback of shares; or

5.3.5. Inthe event of inadequacy of profits.

5.3.6. If the Board proposes not to distribute profit, the grounds thereof and information on
utilisation of undistributed profit, if any, shall be disclosed 1o the shareholders in the Annual
Report of the Company.

Financial Parameters for declaring dividend:

The Board shall consider the following financial parameters while declanng dividend:

5.4.1. the Company’s Financial Results of operations and carnings.

5.4.2. working capital requirements for the operations and growth of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

5.4.3.  quantum of profits and liquidity position;

5.4.4. future fund requirements, including for brand building, business acquisitions, business
expansion, modernisation of existing business;

5.4.5. level of debr;

5.4.6. providing for unforeseen events and contingencies;

5.4.7. any other financial factor as the Board may deem fit,

Internal and External Factors for declaring dividend:
The Board may consider the following internal and external factors whalﬂdedanng dividend:

5.5.1. Internal Factors:

L3
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5.5.1.1.  the level of dividends paid historically;
5.5.1.2.  contractual restrictions and financing agreement covenants:
5.5.1.3. likelihood of crystallisation of contingent liabilities, if any.

5.5.2. External Factors:
5.5.2.1.  general business conditions, risk and uncertainties;
5.5.2.2,  industry outlook and business cycles for underlying businesses;
5.5.2.3.  prevailing economic, competitive and regulatory environment;
5.5.2.4.  tax law and the Company's taxpayer status;
5.5.2.5. capital market.

This is not intended to be an all-inclusive list. but rather a representative list of factors which may be
considered while declaring dividend.

5.6. Manner in which the retained earnings shall be utilised:
Retained earnings are the sum of the Company's profits after dividend payments, since the
Company's inception. The retained earnings of the Company will be wtilised in one or more of the
following manner:
5.6.1. for expansion and growth of business;
5.6.2. for contributing towards the fixed as well as working capital needs of the Company;
5.6.3. major repairs and maintenance, including replacement of old assets which have become
obsolete;
5.6.4. renovation/'modernisation for improving working efficiency of plants and equipment’s and
lor capacity enhancements,
5.6.5. 1o make the Company self dependent of finance from external sources:
5.6.6. for redemption of loans and debentures (if any);
5.6.7. for upgradation of technical knowhow;
5.6.8. non organic growth initiatives, including acquisition of brands/businesses;
5.6.9. for issuing fully paid-up bonus shares to the Shareholders.

5.7. Dividend Range:

5.8. As in the past, subject to the provisions of applicable laws, the Company's dividend payour will be
determined based on availability of financial resources, investment requirements and also ke into
account optimal shareholder return. The Company would endeavour to target a total dividend
payout ratio in the range of 30% to 50% of the Annual Standalone PAT of the Company.

Review of Policy

This Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Board may review and
amend the Policy from time to time, pursuant to any change in law or otherwise.

Disclosures

SR
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TPL shall disclose the Dividend Distribution Policy in the Board's Report forming part of the Annual
Report. This Policy shall also be disclosed on the website of the Company at www triochemproducts.com
Any changes in the Policy, along with the ratonale for the same, shall also be disclosed in the Annual

Report and on the website of the Company.

8. Amendments to the Policy

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and updating our policies and procedures.
Therelore, this policy is subject to modification. Any amendment(s) of any provision of this policy shall
be carried out by the persons authorised by the Board in this regard

ES
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Annual Report 2023 - 2024 Annexure (B) to Board's Report
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024
|Pursuant 1o Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DEAILS
i CIN L24249MH 19T ZPLEOT5544
ii Registration Date 17 i 19732
iii Name of the Company Trinchem Products Limited
iv Category of the Company
| Public Company Yes
Sub Category of the Company
9 Company having share capital Yes
v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details
1 Company Name Tricchem Products Limited
2 Address ath Fleor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort
3 Town [/ City Mombai
1 State Maharushtra
3 Fin Codde A0
fy Country Name Irchia
T Country Code INE
§ Telephone with STD Area Code Number {022) 22663150
9 Fax Numher (1122} 22024657
10 Emiail Acidress www st or e o |
11 Website, .]’an}- www tevochemipreducts o v
12 Name of the Police Station having jurisdiction where the Begistered Office is situated M. K A Marge, Police Station
vi Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchanges(s) Yos
Details of the Stock Exchanges where shares are listed:
8l No.  Stock Exchangesis) Stock Codels)
1 BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) 512101
vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)
1 RTA M5, Link Intime [ndia Private Limited
2 Address C - 10, 247 Park, L B 5. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai ; 400083
3 Town |/ City Mumbai
4 Brae Maharashtra
5 Fin Code AR
& Country Name Iredia
7 Country Coade INT)
¥ Telephone with $TD Area Code Number ((122) 49186270
4 Fax Number (F22Y 49186060
10 Emadl Acldress et helpleskom nmintime co;ir
11 Website, if any e [Inkintime coin
Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business contributing 10% or more of the 1l turnover of the Company shall be stated -
S Name and Description of main Products / Services NIC Code ofthe % g0 total roenover of
No. Product / Services the company
1 Manufacturing of chemical substances used in the manufacturing of pharmaceuticals 24251 10

——



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024
|Pursuant 1o Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2015 and Role 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014|
I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIIMARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Nil - Mot apphicable
IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equiry Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equiry)
A Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Sharcholders Noof Shares hold at the beginning of the Mo, of Shares hold a1 the end of the vear (As % of
year (As on (01042023 on 31.03.2024) Change
Demar  Physical  Total  %olwgal  Demat Physical  Total  %ofusal  during the
shures shires year

A Promoters Sharcholding

| Indian
1 Indridual | Hindu 1,68, 1940 0 168150 GRA49 16180 0 108,190 1 il (AR}
Unidivided Family
b Cenoral Government i fi i 0,00 il i ] (.00 (4]
€ State Government ] ] i 0,04 ] fi 1 (1000 (0.4}
d Bodies Corporate ih i 0 0.0 ] ] ] Q.00 (K}
e Bank ' Fl i ] 0 0.0 il il ] {1,000 AL
f Anv Ukther (Specify) 1] (h ] (.00 0 ) [ 11,00 i0,1H)
Sub Total (A)(1) 1,68, 190 0 LGB0  6E6s9 LOE 19 0 168190 HE.049 (.00
2 Foreign
a NRI Individuals 1] ] ] (3.0 ] 0 0 (1,00 (.00
b Orher Individuals 1] ] ] (o ] ] 1] 0.0 008
€ Bodies Corporae it 1 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 (.00
d Bank / FI 1] 1] ] (.00 ] ] ] 0.0 000
e Any (ther (Specily) 1] 1] ] (.00 1] 1] ] 000 0.00
Sub Total (A} 2) 1] 1] i (L 1] 1] 0 i, 0} .00
Total Sharcholding of 168,150 0 LOSI9 GHOAY 168090 b L6819 08 49 (L.00

Promoters and Promoter
Group (AJ={AM1) +{AM2)

B Public Sharcholding

1 Institutions
3 Murual Funds /17T1 1] i ] (00 1] 1] n (3, (K {100
h Hank = Fl 0 ] ] om0 ] 1] ] (.01 (.0
¢ Central Givernment L] il 1] .00 1] 1] 1] IRLY ]
d State Government i ] ] 000 0 ] {1 AL {100
¢ Yenture Capital Funds U ] i {3, 03 ] 0 1] HELY {160
I [rsurance Companies 1] 1] i IR 1] i 1] {3,0¢1 {100
# Flis 0 ] 0 (1.0 0 i ] 0.0 {000
b Foreign Venture Capital 0 ] ] L] i i ] 0.0 (.00
[vestors
1 Prowdelent Funds Pension i 0 (1] {1400 ] il 1] (L4 {0,000
Funids
| Any Other (specily) 0 0 1l {100 ] 1] 0 0.00 0.00
Sub Total (B 1) i 0 1 L] 1] 1] 0 (.00 AL
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
C Change in Promoters' Sharcholding

SE Sharcholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulaove Sharcholding during the year Heason
Mo (0L 0 2023 o 31032024
Ko of Shares W ol tistal Shares of No. of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
| Mr Rajecsh K. Deora Movement
At the beginning of the vear 363, (NI 14 654 A, MM 14.694  during the
At the end of the vear 30, (K0 14.604 A, (MM) 14.604 year - Nil
2 Mres Grace B Deora Mivement
A the beginning of the vear 3, 01 14694 36, (W) 14684  during the
M the e of the vear 000 14.694 6, (W) 14.604 vear-Nil
A Mr. Rajiv B Deora Movermneni
At the beginning of the year 34,270 13448 M,m 13,988 duning the
A the enid of the vear M,270 15 488 3,270 13988 vear - Nil
4 Mr. Kamu 8, Peora Mavemene
At the beginning of the year 4,500 14.042 34,5000 14082 dluring the
At the end of the vear 44,500 14042 H4,500 L A12 year - Nil
5 Ramu M Deora HUF Movement
At the beginning of the vear 27420 1.192 ITA20 11192 during the
At the end of the yoar 27420 11192 274 11462 wvear-Nil
Nutes:
1 Date of Increase | decrease his been constdered as the dare on which benefictary position was provided by the Depositories to the
Company,
D Sharcholding pattern of top ten sharcholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
S Sharcholder’s Name Sharcholding Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No No of Shares % of total Shares of N of Shares % of total Shares of
the company the company
1 G Amprhay 12000 1594 12,0800 ABUH
Pharmaceusicals Py Lid
2 Triochem Laboratones P 1 2.6k 4 898 12,000 4. 89K
Lad
4 Ambernach Plasto 12.004 4 98 12.000 4598
Packaging Pet Lud
4 Ramesh Rajarim Pl E2, (MW} 4. HUH 12,000 AR
& Hagkumar Shrinhwas Bajorla 7,2 2959 7,200 24939
G Vimlz §. Sharmu 250K |02 2,500 10240
7 Savitri Nareshchandra Jain 25K (WERT] 2,500 1020
8 Snchprabha Agarwal 2,541 1020 2,500 1020
9 N L Rungra HI'F 2.000 NEID 2000 LH1G
11 Verma Shvam Sunder | BHl (1735 1,806 (1,735
Notes:

1 The shares of the Company are not traded in daily basis and hence date wise increase | decrease in sharcholding &s not indicted.
Shareholding is consolidated based on PAN of the Shareholder



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024
| Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
E Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

S Sharcholder's Name Sharcholding at the beginning of the vear Cumulanve Shareholding dunng the year Reason
N (01.04.2023 10 31.03.2024)
N of Shares % of gotal Shares of No. of Shares % of toral Shares of
the company the company
Directors
I Mr. Ramu 8. Deora ® Movement
At the beginning of the year 34,5041 14.082 34,500 14082 during the
Arthe end of the year 34,51 La.082 4,500 la 082 year - Nil
I Mrs Grace R Deora Muowement
At the beginning of the vear 3, (N 14,654 A, K 1a0wd  during the
At the end of the vear 45, (MH) 14694 3, (K1) [4694  year - Nil
3 Mr Rajosh R Deoin Mivement
At the beginning of the vear 36,0000 14.694 36,0410 14694 during the
Arthe end of the vear 36, 000 14684 3, (M) 14694 vear - Nil
+ Mr. Shyam $. Sharma Movement
At the beginning of the vear . - - - during the
At the end of the year . . . - vear-Ni
3 Mr. Sumidl 5, [hunjhunwala Mivement
At the beginaing of the year - - - - duning the
At the endl of the year - - : . voar - Nil
B Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalii Movement
At the beginning of the year - . ‘ ' during the
Ar the end of the vear = z = v year - Nil
Rey Managerial Personnel
1 Mr Hamu S, Deorg * Movement
At the beginning of the year 34.51H) 14.082 34,5101 14082 during the
At the end of the year 34,50 14.082 34,500 l4.082  year- Nil
4 Mr. Puran |, Parmar Muvement
At the beginning of the year - - . < during the
At the end of the year - . - - year-Nil
3 Ms: Ureea Shirish Shirole Mavemene
At the beginning of the vear . - . - during the
At the end of the year - - . - wear-Nil
Nutes

1 * Mr Ram 8, Deora. Director has been included in the list of Dircctors as well as KMP



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024
|Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014|

AN

vV INDEBTEDNESS
Indehredness of the Company including mterest ourseanding | aceraed bur not dee for pavment: Amount in is
seeured Logns Iinsecured Loans Deposits Total Indeltnes
i Exchuding deposits)
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year (As on 01.04.2023)
i Principal Amoumn 17 - I7
u  Interest due but not paid
i Interest acerued but not due . .
Total (i=+ii+iii) 17 - 17
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
i Addimion i3] - . 031
i Reduction irepavment) sl - iy
Ner Change -15 BT
Indebtedness ar the end of the financial year {(As on $1.03.2023)
i Principal Amount Fs 1
il Interest due bur not pakd : -
il Interest accrued but not duc - -
Total (i+ii+iil) 2 . 2
VI REMUNERATION OF INRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL Amount in Ks
sl Parriculars of Remuneration {A) Managing Directors. Whole-  (B) Other Directors (€] Key Managerial Personne
N time Directors and | or Manager CED s CFO
I Gross Salary (excluding Commission)
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in 2.75.000 =
section 17(1) of the Incomietax At
1961
i) Value of perguisites ws 17(2) of the . -
Incomie-tay Act, 1961
() Prohir in bew of salary uws 1712) of % *
the Income-tax Act, 1961
I Stk Uptions i
3 Sweat Eqguity i i 5 B
4 Commisson
- as % of profit - ;
- uthers, specify - 5
5 ithers - Employer contribution o - 5 - -
prisvident and other funds
Total (A) - 2.75,000 -
Ceelling as per the Companies Act, 2013 -
VII PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT [ COMPOUNINNG OF OFFENCES (under the Companies Act. 2013)
N peradties - punishment  compounding of offences were under Companies Act, 2013
O hehalf af the Board of Direciors
Grace W Deora Ramu 5. Deora
Director [Mirector
Mumbai, 28th May, 2024 DIN: (041 2080 DIN: 0312508
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FORM NO., MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to Sechon 204(1) of the Compames Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companes
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

4% Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Triochem Products
Limited (CIN:L24249MH1972PLCO015544) (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opmion thereon

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year 1* April, 2023 to 31%
March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject Lo the reporting made hereinafter:




We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by Triochem Products Limited ("the Company”) for the
audit period covering the Financial Year 1% April, 2023 to 31% March, 2024 according

tor the prov isioms of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(1) The Secunities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Acl, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the Rules and Regulation made
there under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act'):

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable as the
Company has not issued any debt securities during the Audit Period)




g- The securities and Fxchange Roard of India (Registrars to an lssue and
Share Transler Agents) Regulations, 199 reparding the companies act and
dealing with client (Not applicable an the Company is not registered as
Regisrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year
under review):

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Fquity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its
equity shares from any stock exchange during the period under review)

i. Secunihes and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securibes)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable as the Company has not bought back
any of its securities during the period under review)

j- The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Depositories & Participants)
Regulations, 2018 (To the extent applicable);

k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investor Protecton and
Education Fund) Regulations, 2009;

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for
systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws
specifically applicable to the Company:

1. Factories Act, 1948
2 Drugs and Cosmetics Act 1940

3. The Pharmacy Act 1948
4. Water (Prevention and Control of PollutionjAct, 1981

5. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1974
6. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and the Listing Agreements
entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.




We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There
were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in the compliance with the provision of the
Act

Adequate notice 15 given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and the
same were sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent al least Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws
like Direct & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has not been reviewed in this audit since
the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other

designated professionals.

As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulation and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affair in pursuance of of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guideline etc.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

Ry
Makarand Patwardhan
(Partner)
C.P. No. 9031
Membership No.11872

UDIN:A011872F000471199

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28/05/2024




ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members,

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

4 Flpor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M., Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial
records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Qur
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

b0




Place: Mumbai
Date: 28/05/2024

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

v
Makarand Patwardhan

(Partner)

C.P. No. 9031
Membership No.11872
UDIN:A0T1872F000471199

| T
Sncrainring

b




Triochem Products Limited
Annual Report 2023 - 2024

Annexure (D) to Board's Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXRNINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Roles, 2014)

Disclosure of additonal particulars a8 required under the Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)

Kules. 1988 formung pan of the Directoes’ Report for the year ended 4151 March 2024

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

During the vear under report. there was no production activities carried out in the Company and therefore, details are not

required 1o be given (temporarily no manufacturing activity carried out during the current vear)

b Utilising alternate sources of energy

I Solar energy: Nil
2 Wind energy: Nil

¢ The capital investment on energy conscrvation equipment
Additional investments and proposals being implemented for Energy: Bs Nil

d Impact of above measures on consumption of energy
During the vear under report, there was no production activities carried out in the Company and therefore, details are not

required 10 be given

¢ Power & fuel consumption

* Temporarily no manufacrunng acuvry carned out dunng the carrent vear.

B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption

b The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction. product development or import substitution
¢ In case of imported technology (import during the last three vears reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

d The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Not Applelable, since during the vear under ceport, there was no production aceivities carried out in the Company and therefore,

details are not required to be given (temporartly no manufacuring sedvity carried out during the current year)

L FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

St Particulars 2024. 2024
No Amount in Rs

20222023
Amount in s

1 Earning : Export
2 Outgo : lmpart

4 Outgo : Bank Charges -

Mumbi, 28th May, 2024

On behalf of Board of Tirectors

Fre SN

Grace B Deor
MHrectir

[N 00412080

01____,._________..

Ramu 8. Deor
Director
DIN: DDA 23645

(9
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i i Mumbal Office : 203, The Summit, Hanuman Road,
'Kﬂ nu D ﬂS"l ASS ociates I' LP Western Express Highway, Vile Parle (E}, Mumbai - 400 057

Chartered Accountants T 022-2615 0100

Pune Office ; 109, Sohrab Hall, 21 Sasscon Road,
Opp. Jehangir Hospital, Pune - 411001 T : 020-4906 7177

o E:info@kdg.coine W : www.kdg.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our epinion and to the bast of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so reguired and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its net loss including other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibllities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules

~ thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information
The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other

information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do_ nqk—_-u,‘
: 3 f'ﬂ'j{p
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. g@“ e:j\

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read qlf; GEEE{”
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incdis
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with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance, the changes
in equity and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are
respansible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
™ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material If, indlvidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls Ta ABSa AN

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

6,
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

™ relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

N 2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation c!f
the aforesaid Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lass (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Cnmﬁpagga
(Account) Rules, 2014. p %5,
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g)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B",

aillwith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

h)

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, the company has
not paid any remuneration to the directors and thus provisions of Section 197 are not
applicable to the company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its  Financial Statements (Refer Note. 21(a) to the Ind As Financial
Statements).

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

jii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31,
2024,

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries®) by or on behalf of
the Company or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, lo the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropris
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to t

Continuation Sheet
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that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (i) contain any material
mis-statement.

¥. The company has not paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRM. No. 104748\W/W1 D{}DS_E.-—-___‘
e A

s
[
Kunal Vakharia \e
Partner B
o~ Membership no. 148916 o
UDIN: 2414831 EBKCQDGQEE 5'

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28" May, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Report of even date on the accounts of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2024

i, (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangibie assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the company are physically verified by the Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a penod of
three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and
discrepancies noticed between the book records and the physical inventories were
not material and have been properly dealt with In the accounts.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
FProperty, plant and equipment during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for hoiding any benami praperty under the Prohibition
of Banami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

ii.  (a) During the year, the inventories have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage
as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification of inventories and the book records that were 10% or more in the
-~ aggregate for each class of inventory.

{b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no working capital availed by the
company. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

jiii. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, lo companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Hence sub clauses (a) to (f) of clause
3(iii) are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Company has not given any loans or provided any guarantee or
security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
company has complied with provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, ZQM‘@\
respect of investments made during the year. ,// R 1&:‘\
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v, The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent
notified and therefore clause 3(v) is not applicable.

wi, The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for the company
under sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the products
of the Company. Therefore, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vil. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess, Goods & Service Tax and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of GST, Income Tax,
Sales Tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except disclosed below

The disputed amount that have not been deposited in respect of Income Tax is as under:

™ | Sr. | Name of theﬁ Mature of the dues Forum where the dues| Rs. In Lakhs
| No. | Statute is pending |
. Income  tax | Income tax Income Tax Appellate | 3.21
Act, 1961 Tribunal
(A.Y. 1893-1554)
Total 3.21
vili.  According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

% (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanation given to us, the company has not taken any loan or barrowing from banks,
~ government, financial institution and has not issued debentures during the year

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (¢ ) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) According to the Information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes. Accordingly, clause
3Hix){d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company- .
does not have any subsidiary. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Ord&r ot ’.-_".'T.‘
applicable. o) \\r;‘ll
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{f)} According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
does not have any subsidiary. Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

X, (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue/ further offer
(including debt instruments) and through term loans during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3 (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanation given
by the management, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Section
™ 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government.

(c) There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.
Accardingly, clause 3(xi)(c)of the Order is not applicable.

xii.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the nature
of the activities of the company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xiil. According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sec 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv, {a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit,

X, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

*xvi, (a) The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi}(b) of the Order is not sppllc@biﬁﬁg-mp
Company. Ix{}oﬁ' ~%
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(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
is made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year as well as immediately
preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 124.03 lakhs and Rs. 106.49 lakhs
respectively.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our

e examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
v attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135
(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable,

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No: 104746W/W100096

e ASE,
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Kunal Vakharia \ " A
Partner N A
Membership No: 148916 & Ao

UDIN: 24148916BKCQOGS855

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28" May, 2024
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
™ of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with gan"” @
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of =~ %
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records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company, and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinian, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31%' March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN. No. 104746WIW100096 v
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Kunal Vakharia o fiaf

LN

Pariner PR
Membership no. 148916 2 AT
UDIN: 24148916BKCQOGS855

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28" May, 2024
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MI1972PLCO15544)
HALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
{ 1) Non - Current Assets
{2} Property. plant and equipment 3 61.24 bo.88
{ b)) Invesiment property 4 f.65 0.5
[ ¢} Financial assets
{1) Non current invesiments 3 1,047 48 941 58
(i} Ccher financial assers & 9.22 T.4h
(i} Deferred tax Assers 7 20,82 27 HA
{ ) Cither non - current assels 4 151 129
Total Non- Current Assets 1.215.92 1,055.33
{2 Current Assets
{a) Inventorics 9 5.29 5.30
{ b} Finincial assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents L 53.81 95.91
(i1 Other financial assets I 5064 262
{ ¢ ) Other tax assets I2 = T.60
( d y Other current asscls 13 153,98 162,80
Total Current Asscts 271272 128.23
TOTAL ASSETS 1,488.64 1,183.50
EQUITY AND LIARILITTES
EQUITY
{ a) Equity share capital 14 2450 24,50
i by Other equity 15 1.437.52 1,135.22
Total Equity 1.462.02 1,159.72
LIABILITIES
{ 1} Current Liabilities
{ @) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 16 0,00 (.00
{1i} Trade pavables 17 1307 18.49
i by Oeher cureent liabilites 18 (.61 003
(€} Provisions 9 5.08 4.72
{d ) Current tax Habilities 20 786 .
Total Corrent Liabilities 26.62 235.84
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,488.64 1,183.56
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial seements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Forand on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 10474 {E\ § ﬁ)\ Q’} VT,
_Ld‘ ill _.;"' (‘5.'- Grace R Deora Puran Parmar
i ( yAUNEAL | i] Director (DIN: 00312080) Chief Financial Officer
Kunal Vakharia A VES,
Partner 'S’X__, "”'_:""\' O\,..-—-. il
Membership No.: 148916 2770 acl e
Ramu 5. Deora

VDT 241\ 8@1{: &Kf_@ﬂ f/rf?%’ Director (DIN: 00312369)

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2024 q, (_‘



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH 197 2PLCO15544)
STATEMENT OF FROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

|Rs. in Lakhs)|
Particulars Note No. || March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Hevenue from operatons - -
Il Other income 22 102 9% 21.75
i Total Income (1+11) 102.96 .75
IV Expenscs
Cost of material consumed 25 a1 .
Emplovee bencfit expenses 24 47,29 52.28
Finance costs 15 (.00 0.00
Depreciation and amortizaton cxpenses 26 897 101,50
Other expenses i) fri A4 H1Y5
Total expenses (IV) 120.31 144,74
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax (1111V) (17.35) (116.99)
Y1 Add: Exceptional ltems (115.65) -
VIl Profit before tax (V+V1) (133.00) (116.99)
V11 Less: Tax expensc
(1} Current tax
of Current year 11.86 -
of Earlier year {0.85)
{2) Deferred wax
of Current vear (43.53) {27.63)
Total tax expense (Vi) (31.67) (28.48)
IX  Profit after tax (VII-VII) A (101.33) (88.51)
X Other comprehensive income
a{i) lrems that will be reclassified 1o profit or loss
a{ii) Income 1ax relating to items that will be reclassified o profic or loss . -
b} Items that will not be reclassified w profit or loss 155.03 (63.71)
b{ii) Income tax relating w items that will not be reclassified o profir or loss (5200 7.28
Total other comprehensive income for the year B 403.63 {56.43)
X1 Total comprehensive income for the year (IR+X) (A+H) 302.30 (144.94)
Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10~ each) 8
(1) Basic {in Bs.) (41.36) {36.12)
(2) Diluted (in Rs. ) (41.36) {36.12)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes ace an integeal part of the financal statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants \
Firm Registration No.: 104746W/W100096 @\ tbL 2 ' ]
-‘"c.'!l.x"l .I'.'.S.;.b- \ i . q O, ‘ Loovar—
i /-"""“\ Grace R, Deora Puran Parmar
\e\ Director (DIN: 00312080) Chief Financial Officer
Kunal Vakharia ;| Mumea ).§ ’t'—‘“{
Partner % /2 O "
Membership No.: 148916 / I = 1@:’@
U S ACCE Ramu . Deora
DIyt QM!L%‘ME’&K{; RDirector (DIN: 00312369) émnpmyspumry
Place: M 5‘ © L-QQ_,' [l &

Dated: ZBth May, 2024




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLCO155%4)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

|Bs. in Lakhs]
|| 20232024 || 20222023 |
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
MNet Profit before tax and Extraordinary ltems {133.00) (11699
Adjustment for:
Depreciation | Amortisation R 10.50
Interest Income (061 (18.09)
Dividend income on investment (1930 -
Reclassification of remeasurement of employee benefits (007 (L7
Unrealised gainloss on investment [ 24.04) {5.01)
Interest Expenses (.64 (.00
Sundry balance written back {395 (.02
Investment Expenses .29 .83
(38.77) {15.68)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {17L77) (132.67)
ADNUSTMENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES -
Increase/Decrease in Assels (137.3% (6.37)
Changes in Inventorics .01 -
Increase Decrease Trade Receivable - -
Increase/Decrease in other financial and non-financial assets (58.77) (2.35)
Increase/Decrease Trade pavables i1.44) 1.40
Increase/Decrease in other financial and non-financial liabilities . {0.24)
Increase/Decrease in Liabilities (002 {0.01)
Changes in Provision 036 143
{(197.29) (0.14)
{ash Generated from Operations {369.06) (138.81)
Direct taxes paid / {refund) {6.56) 3599
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {(375.02) (102.81)
B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investment {320.30) (G06.06)
Sale of Investment 63444 -
Investment Expenses (0-29) (1.83)
Dividend income on investment 19.30 -
Interest Received .31 15.30)
3335 (98219
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITY 553,51 (982.19)
) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (Decrease)’ Increase in Short Term Borrowings {1.00) .00
Interest Paid [LIRLI (0,007
(0.0 (0.00)
NET CASH [SED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITY (.00 (L0}
NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTSIA+BA4C) {42.10) (1,085.01)
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 95.91 1,180.92
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH Equw%xﬁﬁmi 3k 95,91
/7 ‘@i (42.10) ‘! \ (1,085.01)
3N S } & A P



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
[ (CIN: L24299MH 197 2PLCO15544)
CASI FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs|
| il 2023-2024 || 2022-2023 |
Notes
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash Eguivalents
1 Cash and Cash Fquivalents Includes: (Refer Note No 10}
CASH IN HAND 024 16
BALANCE WITH SCHEDULED BANKS
- In Current Account 52.56 95 31
= In Fixed Deposit (including Acerued Interest) 1.01
33.81 95.91

2 The above Cash flow sttement has been peepared under the "Indieect Method" set out in Accounting Standard 3 - Cash Flows Statement

3 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary o make them comparable with those of the

CUrrent vear
m As per our report of even date artached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates L1P For and on behalfl of Board of MHrectors
Chartered Accountants ni
Firm Registration No.: 104746 b s
@sn ,ui fanS Q- Lo
,::. e~
\ Grace B Deora Puran Parmar
. Director (DIN: 003 12080) Chief Financial Officer {
Kunal Vakharia B AR
F‘ﬂ.‘ﬂ : 4 i:l ':‘! w -
er i ‘, C— 4\ .-‘-__"______-‘-"" 1, - C’:\' e
Membership No.: 148916 #0000 = . (N
> Ramu 5. Deora Ureca Deolekar
1'-:“ I: 1 1 L %C{ \b Q}KC‘QO L(-q%ﬁj (C Director (DIN: 00312369) Company Secretary
Aace: ﬂllihl

Dated: 28th May, 2024
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TRIOCHEM PRODCUTS LIMITED
. (CIN: L24249MH 197 2PLCO15544)
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]
* A Equity Share Capital
Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at §1st March, 2022 (Face Value of Rs. 10/ cach) 245,000 24.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year . .
Balance as at 3151 March, 2023 245,000 24.50
{ hangos in cguity share capial during the year -
Halance as at 315t March, 2024 245,000 24.50
B. Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other items of Other Total
Capital General Retained comprehensive income
Reserve Reserves Earnings  |Remeasurement |Fair Valoe
of net defined  [through Other
benefit plans Comprehensive
ﬁ Income of
Equiry
Investments
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 177.86 1,102.92 (0.6 1,280.16
Profit tor the year 18851 . (BR 31
Remeaurements of Delined Benefir Phan . 0014 - 0.06
Fair Vahae effect of Iivestments of shares {5649 (56,49
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 0.04 177.86 1,014.42 (0.61) (56.49) 1.135.22
Profit for-the year (133} . (101.53)
Remeaurcments of Defined Benefit Plan (net {11.05) s (0.05)
of deferred rax)
Fair Value effect of Investmenis of shares (nct - 40504 405,68
of deferred 1ax)
Transfer of realised gaindoss on sale of cquiry LRI (15K .
shares (net of )
Balance as at 315t March, 2024 0.04 17786 994.99 (0.66) 265.29 1,437.52
n As per our report of even date antached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalfl of Roard of Directors
Chartered Accountants ' I
Firm Registration No.: 104746W WI100096 A 61 Q Wy
P ﬁ;—m \ oo,
R N N )
/3 Y el Grace K. Deora Puran Parmar

i {;: Director (DIN: 003 12080) Chief Financial Officer

Kunal Vakharia iy &
I. i i

b \ e o Dot
Membership No.: 148916 * {;f = e \J{ieed =

SCOuNIS Ramu §, Deora Ureca Deolekar

UDTw 2l L RQ ‘I_G/QS’“»C @Q{;Q@{g Dircctor (DIN: 00312369) Company Sccretary

Mace: Mombai
Dated: 28th May, 2024




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
= Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
1  Company overview
Trinchem Products Limited (the "Company) is an existing public limited company incorporated on 17011972 under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 1956 and deemed to exist within the punview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office ar 4th Floor,
Sambava Chamber, Sic P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - €00 001, [t has been engaged primarily in the business of manufacturer and exporter of
pharmaceuticals products. APls and chemicals, The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited {“BSE"). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Bupee ().
2 Significant accounting policies
This note provides o list of the significant accounting policies adoped in the preparation of these financial stacements. These policies
have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
A Basis of preparation of financial statement
The financial starements Complics in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 (the "Ac") and other
refevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepred in India

The financial statements were authortzed for ssue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28th May, 2024

These financial staements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the functional currency. All the amounts have been
o rounded off to the nearest likhs, unless otherwise indicared.
B Usc of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements reguires management 10 make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of
accounting policies thar affect the reported amounts of assets, labilites, income and expenses. Actual resulis may differ from these

estimates. Continuous eviluation i done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed o be reasonable. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

€ Current and non-current classification
Al assers and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other eriteria set out in
the Schedule 1l o the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nawre of prodocts and the time berween the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Compiny has ascertained its operating cvele as 12 months for the
purpase of current - non-current classificaction of assets and liahilies.
D Foreign currency translation
i Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of the Company e mesured using the currency of the primary cconomic environment
in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The financial statemens are presented in Indian rapee (INK), which is
Company's funetional and presentation curcency
il Transactions and balances

™ Foreign currency transactions are ranslared into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such rransactions and from the ranslaton of monetary assets
and lahilitics denominated in foreign currencies at vear end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. Al the foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the ssatement of Profit and Loss on o net basis within other expenses or other income as
applicable.

E  Property, plant and equipment
i Freehold land is carricd at historical cost including expenditure that & dircetly attributable to the acquisition of the land.
it All other items of property, plant and cquipment are stated a1 cost less accumulated deprecation, Cost includes expenditure that is
dircetly artributable 1o the acquisition of the items,

il Subsequent costs are included in the asser’s carrving amount or recognised as 4 separate asset, d4s appropriate, only when It is
probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will Dow 1w the company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliahly, The eacrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged w prolit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

iv Cost of Capital Work in Progress (CWIF) comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and cquipment outstanding
as ol gach balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purposeé of preparing the CWIP
for it intended use and borrowing cost incurred before the qualifying asset is ready for intended use, CWIP is not depreciaeed untl

such time as the refevant asscr is complered Wimmdeﬁ WS,
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TRICGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

H

v Depreciation methods, estimated useful Bves and residual valoe
{a) Fixed assets are stated an cost tess aooumulated depredation.
{hy Deprectation s provided on g wrtten down vilue method at the rares and manner as prescribed under Schedule 11w the
Companics Act, 2013, The deprecianon charge for cach peniod is recognised in the Sttement of Profit and Loss, unless it & includesd
in the carrving amount of any other asset. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast ar each
financial vear end, I the expectanons differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in
ACCOUNCINgG esrmae.

vi Tangihle assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting date are carried as capuial work-in-progress.

The resicdual values are not more than 3% of the orignal cost of the asset.
An asset’s carmving amount s weitten down immediarcly to its recoverible amount (f the asset’s carrying amount is greater than ies
estimared recoverable amount.

¥i

Fstimated usetul lives, residual values and depreciation methods are ceviewed annually, taking inlo account commercial and
technological obsolescence as well 15 normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Gains and Iosses on disposils are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profic or loss
within other expenses or nther income as applicable

[nvestment Property

Property thiat is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and thi s not cceupled by the Company, is classified
a5 lovestment property. Investment property s measured initially ar s cost, including related transacion costs and where applicible
borrowing costs. Subsequent expendituree is capitalised 1o the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditere will fow 1o the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed when incuered. When part of an investment propenty ds replaced, the carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. Investment properties (except freehold land) are depreciated using the Written down value method over
their estimated useful lives an the rates peescribed under Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013

Intangible asscts

i Ao intangible asset shall be recognised it and onlv i (1) it is probable thar the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asser will Dow o the Company and (h) the cost of the asset can be measured reliahly.

ii Computer software is capiralised where it &5 expected to provide future enduring economic benefits, Capitalisation costs include
licence fees and costs of implementation | system integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in which the relevant
sofrware is implemented for use: The same is amortsed over a pered of 3 yeans on straight-line method,

Borrowing Cost

i Boreowings are indtially recognised ar faie value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measered at
amorised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of rransaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit o
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method, Fees paid on the cstablishment of loan facilities are
recognised us transaction costs of the loan o the extent thar it is probuble thay some or all of the faciliy will be drawn down, In this
case, the fee s deferred uniil the draw down oocurs. To the extent there is e evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capltalised as a prepayment for liguidity services and amortised over the period of the faciliy
10 which it relares,

it Borrowings are classified as current financial Babdlitics unless the group has an uncenditional rghr o defer serlement of the labilioe
for at least 12 months alter the reponting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on
or before the end of the reporting period with the effece thar the liability becomes payvable on demand on the reporting daze. the
entity does not clussity the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements forissue, not o demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Income tax, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax

The Income tax expense or coedit for the year @8 the tax pavable on the current vear's laxible income based on the applicable income tax
rare adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and labilities attributable to temporary differences and oo unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the profic and loss excepr 1o the extent it relates 1o itcms recognised direetly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.
i Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profic for the year, The tax rates and tax laws used o compute
enacted or substantively enzcted, at the reporting date w l_-re-lllJlr:\Cumpany operites and gene
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns’ (10 stuations in which ap
interpretation, It establishes provisions where app_sﬁ ; ".plflmuunts expected 1o
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
= Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Current tax assets and tax libilines are offser when there is a legally enforccable nght to set off current tax assets againsg curment ax
liabilities and Company intends either o settle on a netbasis, o o cealise the asset and sertle the Habidity smultancously

ii Deferred tax
Dheferred tax is provided wsing the Hability method on wmporary differences anising between the tax bases of assets and labditics
aned their carrying amounts in the fimancial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax assees are recognised o the oxtent that it is
probable that future tiable income will Be aviilible against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses,
depreciation carrv-forwards and unused 1ax credits conld be urilised.

Deferred meome tax s not accounted for o it arises from initial recognition of an asset or Hability in 2 transaction other than a
husingss combination that at the tme of the reansaction affects neither accounting profit nor xable profin (G loss)

Dieferred tax assers and liabilities e measured based on the tax rates that are expected o apply in the period when the asset is
realised or the lability i scttled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets i reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect changes in probability that
sufficient taable profits will be available 1o allow all or pant of the asset o be recovered,

Deferred income 1ax assers and labilitics are off-set agansat each other and the resultant net amount s presented in the Balance
n Shee, if and only when, 1) the Company has 2 legally enforceable right 1o set-off the current income tax assers and liabilities, and
(b) the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to ingcome tax levied by the same taxation authority

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the exzent there s convinang ondence thar the company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed ar cach Balance Sheet date and the carming amount
of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there i no longer 2 convincing evidence 1o the effect thar the Company will
Pty normal income tax during the specificd period
1 Revenue recognition
Revenue &8 measured at the Gl value of the consideration recetved or receiviable Amounts disclosed as rovenue are inclusive of cuise
dury and net of returns, trade discount tixes and amounts collected on behalf of thied parties, The Company recognises revenoe as
1 Sales
(i) The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:
{1} The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the poods are transterred o the buyer s per the teems of the contract, which
cotntudes with the delivery of goids:
(h) The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement o the degree usually associaed with the ownership nor
cffective control over the goods sold
() The amount of revenue can be reliably measured
() It bs probable that future connomic benefits associated with the transaction will Bow 1o the Company
ﬁ (¢} The cost incurred o to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably

{f) The company hases its estumates on histoncal results. miong i consideraton the type of customer, the tvpe of ransaction and
the specifics of each arrangement

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind A5 115 which establishes 2 comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenoe is o be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction
Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effecr method. The effect of inmially apphving this standard is
recognised at the date of initial application (Le, April 1, 2018). There are no material impact on revenue recogintion by applving this

1l Other income

{1} Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments s recognised using the effective interest cate method. The effective interest mte bs the nite
that exactly discounts estimated future cash recetpis through the expecred e of the financial asset to the gross carmying amount of 4
financial assct When calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimites the expected cash flows by considering all the
comraciual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected oredit kosses

(i) Dividends
[Hvidends are recognsed in profit or loss only when the night 1o receive payment is established, it is probable thar the economic




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

{iil} Export benefits
lxport incentives are accounted for on cxport of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable accuracy and condinons
precedent w datm are fulfilled.
K Inventorics valuation
i Raw marerials, components, stores & spares, packing material, semi-finished goods & fimshed goods are valued at lower of cost and
net realisable value.
i Cost of Raw Materials, components, stores & spares aned picking material 5 arrived at Weighted Average Cost and Cost of semi-
finished good and finished good comprises, raw materals, direct labour, ether direct costs and related production overheads,
il Scrap s valued a8 et realisable value
iv Due allowances are made o respect of slow moving. nonemoving and obsolete inventores based on estimate made by the
Management
L  Impairment of Assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite uschul life are not subject 1o amortiztion and are 1ested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired  Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nof be recoverable. An impairment loss i recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrving amount cxceeds its recoserable amount. The recoverable amount fs the higher of an asset's fair
vidue less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of asscssing mpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash infloss which are lamgety independent of the cash inflows from other asscts or groups of assets
{cash-generating units). Nonefinancial assets thar suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting perind.

M Fair Yalue Measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments ar fair value ar each halance sheer date Far value s the poce thar would be
recerved tosell an asset or pald o transfer a Habiliey in an orderly transaction between market participants ar the measurement date. The
fair value measurcment is based on the presumption thar the ransaction to sell the asset or wransfer the lability takes place esther:

- In the principal market for the asset or lability, or

- In the absence of 2 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliey
The principal or the most advantageous market muost be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asser or a lability is
measured using the asumptions that market particpants would wse when priciog the asset or Hability, assuming thag market
participants act in their coonomic best interest,

A far value measurement of a non-financial asset akes into account a market panticipant’s ability w0 generate cconomic benelits by
using the asset in irs highest and best use or by selling it to another market panicipam that would use the asset incits highest and
brest se

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available o
measure fair value. maximizing the use of relevant ohservabie inpurs and minimiring the use of unobservable inputs.

All assers and habilines for which fur value s measured or disclosed in the financal statements are categonsed within the fir value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpur thar s significant 1o the far value measurement as a whole:

Level 12 Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets o Habaities in active markers
Lavel 20 Significant inputs to the faie value measurement are directly or indirectlv observable
Lewvel 3 Significant inputs 1o the fir value measurement are unobservable

For assets and liabiliies thar ace recognised in the financial statements on 2 recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfors have ovcorred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorization: (based on the lowest kol input that s
sigrificant to the fair value measurement &5 a whole) at the eod of cach reporeing period

For the purpose of B value disclosures, the Company bas determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asser or liabiliy and the level of the fue vilue hierarchy a8 explained above,

%  Financial Instrument
a  Recognition, classification and presentation

The financial instruments are recognised in the balince sheet when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Company determines the dassificanion of




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company classifies its financial assets i the following eategories: a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither
through other comprehensive income. or through profit or loss), and b) those 1o be measured ar amortized cost. The dassification
depends on the entiry's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets and liabilities aeistng from different transactions are offset against cach other and the resultane net amount is
presented in the halance sheet, if and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable nght w set-off the related
recognised amounts and intends either to sertle on @ net hasis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilitics simultaneousty.

b Measurement
iA)} Initial measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fir
value through profit o loss, transaction costs that are dirgetly arnbutable to the acquition of the financial assets. Otherwise
transiaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss,

{B) Subsequent measurement - financial assets
The subsequent mepsurement of the financial assers depends on their classification as follows:
{1} Financial asscts measured at amortized cost

Assets thar are held for collection of contraceual cash fows where those cash fows represent solely payments of prindpal and
interest ane measured at amortized cost using the effective interest e ('EIRY) method {if the impact of discounting / any transaction
costs i significnt ). Interest income from these finandal assers is included in finance income,

{1i} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FYTOCT)
Equity investments which are not held for trading and for which the Company has elected 1o present the change in the fair value in

other comprehensive income and debt instrumens thar are held for collection of contractual cash Qows and for selling the financial
assers, where the wssets” cash Oow represent solely payment of principal and interese, are measured ar FVTOLL

The changes in fair value are taken through OC1, except for the impatrment, interest (basis EIR methad), dividend and foreign
exchange differences which are recognised in the stiement of profit and loss

When the financial asset s derecognized. the relared accumulared fair value adjusiments in OCI as at the date of derecognition are
reclassified from equity and recognised In the statement of profit and loss, However, there s no subsequent reclassification of fair
vitlue gains ind losses to statement of profitand loss in case of equity insiruments,

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FYTPLY)

All equity inseruments and financial assets that do not meet the eriteria for amortized cost or FVTOCT are measured ar fir value
through profit or loss. Tnterest (basis EIR method) and dividend income from FYTPL is recognised in the statement of profic and loss
within finance income [ finance costs separately from the other gainglosses arising from changes in the fair value.
Impairment
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and
dett instrument carried at FVTOEL The impairment methodology applicd depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since indtial recognition. If coedic risk has not inceeased significantly, twelve month ECL 5 used o provide for
impatement loss, otherwise lifetime FCL s used.
Henwever, only in case of trade recebvables, the company applics the simplified approach which requires expected lifctime losses 1o
be recognized from initfal recognition of the recervables.
(c) Subsequent measurement - financial liabilities
Crher financial labifices are initially recognised at fair value less any directly attnbutable rransaction costs, They are subsequently
measured ar amortized cost using the EIR method (if the impact of discounting / any rransaction costs is significant).
¢ De-recognition
The financial labilities are de-recognised from the balance sheer when the under-lving obligations are extinguished, discharged,
lapsed, cancelled, expires or legally relessed. The financial assets are de-recognised from the balance sheer when the nghts 1w
receive cash flows from the financial ussets have expined. or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership, A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise w g financial asset of one entity and a finuncial
Hahility or equity instrument of another entity,
) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, dtpm'tta,uuh banks, uther short term highly liquid InvEstments with original maturities

of three months or less that are readily mnwrﬁl‘t%ﬁ}_msm _Eﬁhunts of cash and which are subject v /o_,afr nt risk of changes in
%

N
value, \ - Y -""_"x‘ N
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TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash Aows, cash and cash equivalents includes oustanding bank overdrafi shown
within currem liahilities in statement of financial balance sheet and which are considered as integral pan of company's cash management
policy

Investments

Fiuity investments are measured ae fair vidue, with value changes recognised in Other Comprehensive Tncome, except for those mutual
fund for which the Company has elected 1o present the Eair value chinges in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at thedr faie value and subscquently measured ar amortised cost asing the effective interest
method less provision for expected credin loss

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent labilities for goods and services provided o the Company prior 1o the end of financal year which are unpaid,
Trade and other pavables are recogrised initkally ar fair value, and subscquently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asscts
i Provisions:
A privision & recognized, when company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past ovents and it is probable
thar an outflow of resources embadyving economic bencfits will be requined (o settle the obligation, in respeat of which a reliable
estimate can be made for the amount of obliganon. The expense relaning 10 the provision s presented in the profit and loss net of
any reimbursement

If the effect of the nme value of money & material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate thar refleces, when
appropriate, the nsks spectfic w the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 10 the passage of nme s
recognised a8 4 finance cost

i Contingent Liability

A contingent Hability s & possible obligation that wrises from past events whose exdstence will be confiemed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or 4 present obligation that s not
recogniecd because i s oo probable that an outflow of resources will be regquired o settle the obligation. A contingent liahility also
arses in cxtremcly rare ciases where there ts a liability that cannot be recognlecd because It cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contimgent lability but discloses its existence in the finaneiil statements,

=

Contingent labilities. if material, are disclosed by way of notes. and contingent assets, (F any, are disclosed in the notes to financial
stalements,

il Contingent Assets
Comtingent Assets are discloacd, where an inflow of economic benefits s prohahle

T  Earnings per share

i Basic carnings per share
Hasic camings per share is calculated by dividing:
< the profit annbutable 1o owners of the Company, and

- hy the welghted average number of cquity shares ourstanding during the financal year. adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the vear,

ii Diluted earnings per share
Dilured carnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic camings per shiare 1o take into account:
- the afier income tax effect of interest and other Anancing costs assoclated with dilutive potential equity shares; and
- the welghted average number of additional cquity shares that would have been oustanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.
Lease Accounting
% 2 lessee, the Company previously classified leases a8 operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease

transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards inodental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Hader Ind A% 116,
the Company recognzes right of use assets and lease labilities for most leases ¢ these leases are on balance sheer,

U transition, the Company has applicd followin
i Applicd a single discount rate to 1 w%i




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
il Applicd the expempeion not to recognise right-ofuse-assets and liabilines for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the
date of transition,
iil Fxcluded the initial diceet costs from the measurement of the sight-of suse-asset at the date of transiton.

iv Grandfathered the assessment of which trnsactions are, or contain leases. Accordingly, Tnd AS 116 & applicd only o contraces that
were previously idennificd a5 feases under Il AS 17
¥ Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of inital apphicanon as an
alternative 1o performing 4n impalrment review,
¥i Used hindsight when determining the lease term i the contract contains optlons to extend or terminate the lease
VvV Employee benefits

i Short-term obligations
Lighilities for wages, salanies and leave encashment including non-maonetary benefits that are expected 1o be seuled whaolly within 12
months after the end of the penod in which the emplovees render the related service are recognised In respeat of employees!
services up o the end of the reporting period and are measured 2t the amounts expected w be pald when the labilities are settled
The liahilities are presented 2s current emplovee benefit obligations in the balance sheet

ii Dther long-term employee benefit obligations
H, The lisbilities [or carned leave are not expecied to be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of the period in which the
employees render the related semice. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by emplovees up to the end of the reporting period using the profected unit credit method. The
benefits ane discounted wsing the appropriate market vields at the end of the reponing period thar have terms approximating to the
terms OF the related obligation, Remeasurements a5 i result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or oss,

The ohligations are presented as current labilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defier
settlement for at least rwelve months alter the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement s expected to ooour,

iii Post-cmployment ohligations
The group operates the following post-cmplovment schemes:

a Defined benefit gratuity plan:
Gratuity and Leave encashment which are defined benefits are accrued  based on actuarial valuation . working  provided by
Independent actuary: The Contribution i charged 1o profit and loss.

The labiliny or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respeet of defined benelit graity plans s the present vilue of the defined
hencfit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually
as per the repont on independent acuary. The present value of the defined benclit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market vields a8 the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have

n terms approximating to the terms of the related obliganon: The net interest cost s caloulated by applyving the discount rate 1o the

: net balance of the defined henefit obligation and the Fir value of plan asscts This oot s included in employee benefit expense in
the stitement of profit and loss. Remezsurement gains and lases arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
asumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensve income. They are induded in
retained carnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet

b Defined Contribution plan:
Contribution pavable 1o recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which is defined contribution scheme & charged 10
Statement of Profit & Loss. The company has no further obligation (o the plan beyvond its contribution
W Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wherehy ner profic before tx s adjusted for the effeces of ransactions of 2 non-cash

natare. any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipis or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash fliows, The cash Sows from operating, Investing and Gnancieg activities of the Company are segregated,

X Operating Cyvele
Hased on the nature of producs acaties of the Company and the normal tdme between acquisition of assets and their cealisation in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operuting cvcle as 12 months for the purpose of dassificatlon of it assets and
liahilitbes a8 current and non current

Y  Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the Snancisl statements
unless otherwise stated 1s per the requirement of




TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

| Rs, in Lakhs]
NOTE NO. 3 : PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Particulars Freehold land Building Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Difice Total
machinery fixtures equipments
Gross block
As at March 31,2022 1159 L34 152,11 1.3 (12 741 192.67
Additions . - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
As at March 31,2023 059 I 34 182,11 130 12 7.4l 19267
Additions - -
Disposls . . . - - -
As at March 31,2024 .39 L34 18211 130 012 74l 142,67
Particulars Freehold land Building Plant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Total
machinery fixtures equipments
Accnmulated depreciation
As at March 31,2022 - (h4 504 7 .79 112,65
Depreciation charge during the year i1 10,10 104 t15
Disposals - E ‘ : 3 ;
As at March 31,2023 (.05 115.13 .83 - 6.79 12280
Depreciation charge during the year 2 X3! R0 (1413 : - LR
Drisposals - - - - - . -
As at March 31,2024 - (1.0 123,72 086 - 079 131.43
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 (.39 1.29 60,949 .46 012 .63 B Bty
Net carrving amount as at March 31, 2024 .39 1.24 5H.349 0,43 0,12 .63 0124
T
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

|Ks. in Lakhs)
NOTE NO. 4 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Particulars Building Total
Gross hlock
As at March 31.2022 980 980
Addditions
Lisposals - .
Asat March 31,2023 9.89 989
Addditions
Disposils . g
As al March 31,2024 9.80 9.89
Particulars | Building | Total
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31,2022 235 235
Depreciation charge during the year (.36 .36
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 2.90 2:40)
Depreciation charge during the year .34 134
Drisposaly - -
As at March 31,2024 Jidd 324
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 .99 .99
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 .65 (.65
Particnlars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Kental incomg Nil Nil
Direat operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income. 3.02 2.50

There are no restrictions on the realisahility of investment propeny.

The company is using same life for the same class of asser as applicable for property plant and equipment.

Fair Value

Imvestment property - Residenial building, the marker vilue has not been ascertained.

The: range of estimates within which fuir value is highly likely to lic: Between Rs, 4.00 Crore to 420 Crore




TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

—

| Rs. in Lakhs|
5  NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particulars Face As at March 31. 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Value Quantiry Amount Quantity Amount
Non Trade Invesiments
Quaoted
Equity Instruments (At FYOCH
Life Insurance Corporation of India Bs 10h- 58.3(H1 335,04 58,54 MLT7
GAIL [india) 12d Hs 11 1, 50001 27172 1,500,106 15787
NHPC Lid s 10y 25,0001 22.41 25, 1K) 10.0%
Brilasoft Limited Rs. 27 20,000 5220
Toral Value of Quoted Investments 829.17 53189
U'nguoted
Muiual Funds (At FVTPL)
SBI Ligued Fund - Direct Growth Hs. 1,000 - - - L1, 60H 08T 408.59
SHI Arhitrage Opportunities Fund - Hs. 100 B.50.225.675 27831
Direct Plant - Growth
Total Value of Ungquoted Investments ITH:31 408,99
Net Value of Investment 1,107 48 941.88
6 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
(Unsecured consider good, unless ather wise specificd)
Dreposits 9,22 7.46
4.12 746
7 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
[Name of the sharcholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Deferred rax assets (Net) (Refer Note No. 7.1) 24,84 1783
2982 2783
Note No.: 7.1
Particulars Net balance as at |Recognised in Recognised in- |Net balance as a
April 01, 202F  |statement of (4] March 31, 2024
profit and loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities | (Asscts)
Property, plant and equipment | Imvestment Property | Other, 8.1 (062} .39
Intangihle Asscts
Fair Value through P&L (2847 (41.43) - (64.90)
Fair Yalue through O4) (747) 52.00 #4453
Uihers Matter . 1047 1047
Experses allowable under income tix on payment hasis {0.10) {2241) - {2251)
{27 53) {54,003 5100 (29.82)
Particulars Net balance as at |Recognised in Recognised in - [Net balance as at
April 01, 2022 |statement of (4.8 March 31, 2023
profit and loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets)
Property, plant and equipment | Investment Property © Other, 842 (72 - 821
Intangible Asscts
Fair Value through P&1L iy {28.45) - {28.47)
Fair Yalue through OC1 (0.19) . (7.28) (747
(thers Matier : i . A
Expenses allowable under income tax on payment basis (1.63) 1.54 - i 11y
7 (8 eyl =~ (7.28) (27.83)

o 0
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Income tix

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Particulars — [] March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023 |
Profit and Loss: -
Current tax - net of effect of earlier years - Rs, 0,00 Lakhs (31 March 2023 - Rs, 0,00 Lakhs) 11.86 {0185}
Deferred tax - net of reversal of carlier years - Rs. Nil {31 March 2023 : Rs. Nil) (43.53) (27.63)
{31.67) (28.48)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, |ended March 31,
2024 2023
Profit before income tax expense (133.00) {116.99)
Tix at the Indian o rate (@ 25.17% (31 March 2023 (@0 25.17%) (33.47) (29.45)
Add: Items giving rise to difference in tax
Permanent difference 1154 {184
(hers 097 0.97
Tax for cardier vears . (LB
Total Tax Expenses (31.66) (28.49)
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
(Unsecured consider good, unless ather wise specified)
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value o be received 1.51 1.29
1.51 1.29
INVENTORIES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Raw Material 443 444
Packing Material .86 1186
5.49 3.30
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Balance With Hanks
- O Cuarrent account 52.56 05.31
- Fined Deposit {Including Accrued Interest) (Refer Note No, 10.1) LaH -
ash on Hand (.24 {16
55481 9591
Note No. 10.1: All the fixed deposits having maturity of more than 12 months
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{Unsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Cither recetvables 440 233
Imterest Receivable .24 .29
5064 262
OTHER TAX ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Advance Tax and Tix Deducted at Source {(Net of Provision for Tixation) T.60
760
OTHER CLURRENT ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
{(Unsecured consider good. unless other wise specified) L RSSE oc %,‘:\
Balance with Central Excise and GST 1 2/ rj.‘. == W 9,76
Advance to suppliers and service providers - \*;' \I I\ 0.36
Advance recoverahle in cash or kind of for value 1o be r:n:tﬁﬂd "?"F"l' ] E'j J = jf 0,55
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TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Advange 1o emplover .63 (40
Advance to Gratuity Fund (Reler Note No. 32) 4.20 535
15398 1680
14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Authorized Share Capital
2,50,000 Equity shares, Rs. 10/ par value 25.00 25.400
{31 March 2023: 250,000 equity shares fts. 10.- cach)
25.00) 2500

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
245,000 Equity shares, Bs. 10/ par value fully paid up 2450 2450
{31 March 20023: 245,000 equity shares Bs, 10 each)

24.50 2450

Note No. 14.1: The reconcilation of the number of shares oustanding ar the beginning and an the end of reporting period 31-03-2024:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares I Amount No. of Shares I Amount
Number of shires it the beginning 2.45,1HH 2450 2,45, 24,50
Adel: Shares issued during the year . : - .
less ; Shares boughe back (if any) : ; . )
Number of shares at the end 2.45.10H 24,50 2,495,000 24,50

Note No. 14.2: Terms / rights ateached 1o equity shares
{A) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par valee of Bs:10/ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entided to one vote
per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject o the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General

{B) In the event of lquidaton of the company, the holders of equiry shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amoonts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note No. 14.3: The details of sharcholders holding more thian 3% shares in the company:

Name of the sharcholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of % held as at Number of % held as at
shares held shares held

Mr. Ramu §. Dewri 34,500 L4.08% 34,500 14.08%

Mr. Rajesh R Deora A, () 14.69% 36,000 14.69%

Mr. Rajiv I Denra 34,270 13.99% 34,270 13.99%

Ramu M Deora HUF 27420 11.19% 27420 11.19%

Mes, Groace B Deori 36,1 14.69% 36,(H)0 14.69%

Note No. T4.4: The detalls of sharcholders holding of promoters
{a) Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2024

[Fromoter Name Nor. of Shares| % of 1otal shares | % Change during the vear, % of total shares 1
1} Mr. Ramu 5. Deora 346,300 14.08% .
2} Mr. Rajesh R Deora 3,400 14.65%
&) Mr. Kagiv K. Deora M,270 13.99%
4] Bamu M Deora TUT 27420 1L19%
31 Mrs. Grace B Deora 36,000 14.69%
['cxal 1,68, 190 68640
ih) Shares held by promoters ar March 31, 2025
[Promoter Name No. of Shares| % of total shares | % Change during the vear, % of total shares
17 Mr. Kamu 5. Deora 34,300 T4 08%
2) Mr. Kajesh K. Deora A, 000 14.69%
31 Mr, Rajiv R, Deora —— 34,270 13.90%
4) Kamu M Deora HUF 7 f__it‘:gh.:_, 27,420 L1 19% . =
5) Mrs. Grace R Deora /57 NP 36,000 14.69% A S NN
Total (= \S\ 168100 68 64% i NG
(3| mumea )
= Pl -
Nl qo0 Y,
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- Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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|Rs. in Lakhs)

OTHER EQUITY
[Name of the shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Reserves & surplus®
Capital Reserve # 004 0.4
Gieneral Reserves ## 7786 177 B6
Hetained earmings 99499 L0441
Uther Comprehensive Income (1)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans () (o)
-Fair Value of Equiy Investments through (0] 265,29 26463 156h.4Y) (57,097

1.437.52 1,135.22

# {apital reserve mainly represents amount on capital account

## General reserve relfects amount transferred from statement of profit and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Act, 2013,

* For movement, refer statemeni of changes in equity

BORROWINGS

[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023]

Secured (Refer Note No. 16.1)

From Bank

Fxport Packing Credit 0.0 0.00
0.00 .00

Note No. 16.1: The above loan from State Bank of India, Banker of the Company, is scoured primarnily against 1st charge on the Company's

Current Assets,

TRADE PAYABLES

[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current

Dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note Noo 171 and 17.2) . .
Dues other than micro and small enterprises (Refer Note No. 17,1 and 17.2) 1507 1549

15.07 18.49

Note No. 17.1: The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Mlero, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act. 2006 and hence disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid / payable under this
Act have not been given

Note No. 17.2: The said information and Trade Pavables regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined 1o the extent such partics
have been identified on the hasis of information avaitable with the company

[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid o supplicns
(1) Principal amount remaining unpasd 1o any suppher a8 at the end of each acoounting year; - -

{il) Interest due on (1) above remaining unpaid to the supplier as a1 the end of cach accounting year, . -
(lily Imterest pald by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micmo, Small and Modiom Enterprises

Development Act, 2046, along with the ameunt of the payment made to the supplicr heyond the

appointed day during each accounting vear, - -
vy Interest e and payable for the perod of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

bevond the appoined day during the vear) but withour adding the interest specified under the Micro,

Stmall gnd Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20006, -

(v} Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounnng year; and -

(1) Interest remaining due and pavable even in the succeeding years, uniil such date when the interest

dues as above arc actually patd o the small enterprse, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 -

Note No. 17.3: Trade Pavables due for payment

{3) Trade Pavables agreing schedule as ar March 31, 2024
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

#mrmmnmdeumnp:nmmw

cconomic I:-r:n.cﬁ:.s is remate, have not been cons

| Rs. in Lakhs|
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
5 Less than | & montths - 1-2 2.3 More than
6 months 1 year yrars years 3 years
(i) MSME
(1i) Orthers H.3 . B3
(i) Disputed does - MSME
(v} Disputed dues - others
Tiotal .36 836
Add- Accrued Expense 47
Tital Trade Pavables 13.07
{b) Trade Payables ageing schodule as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymeni Total
Less than | 6 montths - 1-2 2-3 More than
bt months | year vears VEArs 3 years
ﬁ (i) MSME -
{1} Others B8 427 1265
{iiiy Dispured dues - MSME
{iv) Disputed dues - others -
Total H 38 §.27 1265
Add: Accrued Expense 5.8
Total Trade Pavahles 18.49
18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Statutory Ducs Payable 0.6l .63
(.61 1L63%
19 PROVISIONS
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Provision for Em Reneti
For Leave Encashment (1 nfunded) 5,08 4.72
5,04 472
ﬁ 20 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Provision for taxation (Net of tax payment) TG -
T Bb
21 ) CONTIGENT LIABILITY #
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
1) Disputed Tax Liabiley 321 1.2
Income Tax Dispute - 430 Disallowance
Income Tax Act, 1961 pending with The Appellate Tribunal for
thi: Assessmen! Year 1993 1994
521 54
b COMMITMENTS
[Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
1) Estimared Amounts of Contract remaining to be executed on - .
Capital account and not provided for
Note: —

ced. Clums, where the pmslbﬂi!f‘afwﬂm of resources embadying



TRICK HEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
- Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs|
12 OTHER INCOME
. [Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Interest Income (Hefor Note Mo, 22.1) .61 18.09
Oither Support Service 55.00
Other Non Operating Income
Unrealised Gain on Investment in Mutual Fund 24.04 .01
Dividend Recetved 1936 (6%
Sundry Balanoe Written Back (Net) 395 .
L2500 2575
Note No. 22.1 : Breakeup of Interest Incomic
Intcrest income on other deposits (k40 0
Interest income on income tax refund (131 7
Interest income on foeed deposit with bank {n 15.00
.61 18.09
23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
ﬁ Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 144 444
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 443 .44
(205t of Materials Consumed 0.01 -
|Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Packing Material
Iveniory at the beginning ol the year 186 0.86
Less: Inventory ar the end of the year (.86 01.86
Cost of Materials Consumed
(h1H
24 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 15 48.TA
Contnibution 1o Provident and other fund 3.25 353
Seaff Welfare Fxpenses 013 0.02
17.29 5228
25 FINANCE COST
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
.ﬁ Interest Expense on Short Term Bank Borrowing (.00 (.00
L] 0.00
26 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Depreciation on Properry, Plant and Equipment B63 10,15
Depreciation on lovestment Property 134 (.35
897 10.50
27 OTHER EXPENSES
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
Power & Fuel 2800 1788
Repairs & Maintcnance
Plant & Machinery 4.5 498
Butliing 2l 1.94
(hers .52 T 011 7.04
Insurance Charges 291 R
Hates & Taxes 0.79 1.
Rent 018 018
Payment 1o Statutory Auditor (Refer Note No, 2 ).H _::- 216 a1
Water Charge /. ‘i‘l f\Q;-} ad Uaﬁ\t-._ 0.96
Labour Charges [s/ . - 345, 25.50
Freight and Forwarding = “F" e ;
Listing Fees A\ by ~325 = 100
Postage and Telephane 'L_ : & o 053
Interest on TDS and EPFO #‘?—” e q3 + 0.8~ 0.00



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

. Notes to the Anancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

30

|Rs. in Lakhs|
Peralty an T and EFFO (100 ool
Legal & Professional 4k 6.32
Hegistrar & Share Transfer Fee 0186 094
Bank Charges LN E 1%
Interest Expense on GST (.02 .
Misceilancous expenses 330 208
| 'nrcaliscd Loss on Investment in Murual Fund 570 .
Investment Expenses .39 (.83
i (M H1455

Note No. 271 - Pavment to Statutory Auditors
As Auditors -
Audit Fees (including Limited Review) 1.84 I .BY
Towards GST/Service Tax * (34 (154

25 2.2%
In (ther Capacity
Other Service 025 0.20
Chut of pocket cxpenses 0.2 002
Towrds GST Service Tax * 0.1 0,04

0.32 .25
Toral Auditors Kemuneration 255 248

* Note: Oue of above GST) Service: Tax credlt of Rs 38,835/« (Previous Year Rs A7 859 <) has been taken and the same has it been debited 10
Statement of Profit & Loss.

EARNING PER SHARE

[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
(a) Profit artributable to Equity Sharcholders (111 33) (88:51)
{b) No. of Equity Share owstanding during the year, 245,000 2,45.000
() Face Yalue of each Equity Share (s 1 10
id) Hasic & Diluted eitrning per Share (Hs ) P41 36) {36.12)
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

During the current period. the company has complied with circular no. 1602023-Cus dated Tth June 2023 issued by The Central Board of
Indlirect taxes and Customs Drawhack division for compliance with the pre-impon condition for payment of 1657 and interest thereon for
imports made under Advance Authorztion on or after 13t Ocober 2007 il Sth January 2009 on which 1GST exemption had been avilled. As
per the drcular the company was non-compliant with the ‘pre-import” conditions as defined in the revised ciroular no. 16:2023-Cus dated Tth
June 2023 due 1o which the comparry was hable to pay Rs 25987 lakhs including interest. The Company has daimed the credit of 1GST paid and
the interest portion amounting to Ks 11563 lakhs has been shown under Exceptional items

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities cxpose it to credie risk, lguidity sk and price risk

This nore explains the sources of risk which the ennty s exposed 10 and how the entiry manages the sk and the mpact thereof in the financial
stitements

Risk Exposure arising from  |Measurement Management

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents,|Credit  rarings, Heview  of  aging{Strict crodit control and monitoring|
trade  receivables  andanalysls, on quarterly basts system, diversification of|
linincial assets, counterparties, on quarterty hasis

Liguidlity fisk Trade payables and other

financeal labilities,

Maturiry cash  flow

profections

analysis, Maintzinang  sufficient cash ¢ cash
equivalents and marketable security
and  focus on realisation  off

reveivables:

Market Risk - Forcign Exchange Financial — assets  and{Foreign currency  exposure review(The company partly hedged due 1o

liahilities not denominatedand sensitivity analysis matural hedge and s explorng w
in INK hedge its unhedged positions,
Market risk — security prices Investments  in - equityfSensitivity analysis Pordolio diversificaon

Price Risk Change ng”l'h: COMpany sourcing oo wempany (s able to pass on|
mm‘flﬂl. " 2 mndmdimbh:milduﬁmMLﬁMcthlkclfmy:nth:
1 e 1I:‘-§-:nti'm.!s::uzurzu:pnmss.lr-:u::n customers.
A v N risk
At :



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]
The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas such as credit risk. liguidity risk,
price risk and foreign exchange risk effecting business operation. The company’s risk management s carried out by the management 15 per
guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Dircctors.
{A) Credit Risk
Credit rsk is the rsk thar counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financtal instrument or customer contract, leading to @ fnancial loss
Credit risk encompasses the direct risk of default, risk of deteroration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company is
exposed (o credit risk from its operating activities (primanily trade receivables), deposits with banks and loans given
Credit Risk Management
The company’s credit risk mainly from trade recevables as these are tpically unsecured. This credit risk has abways been managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit imits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 10 whom credit s extended in the
normal course of business. The Company estimates the expected ceedit loss hased on past data, available information on public domain il
experience. Expected credit losses of financtal assets receivable are estimated based on historical data of the Company. The company has
provisiening poficy for cxpected credit losses

On adoption of Ind AS 14, the Company uses expected credin loss model to assess the impairment loss or gin,
The company’s cxposire to credit risk for trade recewvables {s as follows

Particulars Gross Carrying amount Gross Carrying amount
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1 - 180 thiys past due® . -

181 - 365 days past due . P

Muore than 365 days pas dues# . -

Total - -

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past doe by more than 180 days are still colfectble in full, based on historical
pavment hehaviour,

# The Company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more than 180 days past
{B) Liquidity Risk

Liqquidity risk represents the inability of the Company to mect its financial obligations within stipulated time. To mitigate this risk, the Company
muaintzing sufficient liquidity by way of working capital limits from banks.

The table below provides detuls regirding the remaining contracrual maturitics of financial liabilities at the reporting date hased on contractual
undisconnted pavments:

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2024

Borrowings {100 - L)
Trade pavables 13417 - 1347
Total 13.07 - 13.07
Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2025

Horrowings (.00 - (1)
Trade payables 18.49 - 18.49
Total 158.49 - 18.49
(') Foreign Currency risk disclosure

A, Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk thar the fumre cash flows of a financial instrument will Buctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company is exposed to the elfects of Huctanon in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rutes on his financial position and cash flows,
Exposure arises pomarily due to exchange rate focwations between the funetional currency and other currencies from the Company's
operting investing and financing activities, For the year ended 3151 March 2023, no outstanding trade receivables and trade payables fying in
foreipn currendy.

(D) Market risk

A, Price risk

Exposure

The company’s expasure 1o equity securines mutual fund price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the balance
sheet either as fair value through OCH or at fair value theough profit or loss,

To manage its price risk arising from investments i ities/murual fund. the company diversifics its portfolio. Diversification of the
portfolio &s done in accordance with the limits sep byfhe Tomp G, PRt e Ry
(E) Price risk S Z

The company is exposed o price risk in basic '_ dlisnts of Compiay's raw material and | _pmmﬂ;q;:'.m.icriah from vendors directly. The
Company monitors its price risk and factors the prite increase in of the products. == J=ll




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 51, 2024

|Hs. in Lakhs)
31 Related party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24, *Related Party Disclosures™, are given below:
a) Name of the related party and descripuon of relationship
51 No.  |Related Parties Nature of Relationship
{iy Mr. Ramu . Deora Director and CEO {Key Managerial Personnel)
(i} Mrs. Ureca Deolekar Compny Secretiry
(i) i Amgphray [aboratorics Koy managerial person ds propricior
iiv) G Amphray Pharmaceuticals M Relatve of key manageral person have control
vl Trinchem Products Gratuity | Key managerial person is trustee
b} Ditails of Transactions during the year with relatal pantics
8l No.  |Related parties Nature of Transactions during the vear March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) G Amphray Laboratorics Remburshment of cxpenses - 19.69
()ther Support Scrvice 55,101 '

(i) Mrs. Ureca Denlelear Salary Pad 275 240
¢} Balances at end of the year with related parties
SL No.  |Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
(i) : Amphray Laboratonics (iher Recoivable 50,40 232
(i} Triochem Products Gratuity FyAdvance for Gratuity 4.20 .33

32 Employee Benefits

As per IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits”, the Jdisclosures of Employee benefits as defined in the sasd Accounting Standands are given below

(i} Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution 1o Defined Contribution Plan includes Providend Fund. The expenses recognised for the year are as under

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Employer's Conribution w Providend Fand 218 233
(i) Defined Benefit Plan

{3 Gratuity:

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every emplovee is entitled 1o the benelit equivalent 1o 15 days ¢ one month salary last drawn for
gach complered vear of service depending on the date of joining. The sume 6 payable on erminatlon of scrvice, reticement or death,
whichever is eardier. The bencfit vests after S vears of continuous service,

ib) The following tables set out the assumptions taken, status of the gratuity plan, the amounts recognised in the Company’s fnancial
statements as af 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

SL No.  |Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Valuation Results as at March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
1 Change in present value of obligations
FVO) at beginning of period 280 1.63
Interost cost .20 0.12
Ul senice cost 147 (.94
Past service cost - (non vested benefits) < =
Past service cost - (vested benefits) - -
Benefits paid - -
Contribution by plan participants - -
Husiness combinations
Curtallments
Settelements . -
Actuarial (Gain) | Liss on obligation 0.16 011
VO at end of period 4.23 280
| Interest Expenses
Interest cost | 0.20 | 012
i Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 1.93 2.9
Interest cost o — 220 niz
v Net liability AWV gea P
PVO at beginning of period sy ) A AT 163
Fair value of the assets at beginning report |~/ 4. \=\ i = N 193 204
Net liahiliry - | B, ] I o plumbar |2k (0.46)




TRIOGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

= Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

) [Rs. in Lakhs|
¥ Net inferest
* Interest expenses 0.20 112
Interest income .20 .12
Net interest - -
! Actual return on plan assets
Acoual returm on plan asses (129 0.3
Less interest income included above .20 0.12
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (48 (.18
ViI Actoarial {Gain) / Loss on obligation
Dae to demographic assumption® - -
Due o financial assumption (L0 {006}
Dug to expericnce .07 0n.17
Toral actuartal ((ainy /. Loss .16 11
* This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a limit is applied
on the bencfit the effect will be shown s &n experience
Vil Fair value of plan assets
™ Opening fiir value of plan asscts 1.93 2.9
Adljustment 1o opening fair value of plan asses 0.87 (f.46)
Reurn on plan assets excluding interest income 109 0,18
Interest income {120 12
Contribution by emplover -
Contribution by emplovee -
Henefit paid - -
Fair value of plan assets at end 309 1.93
X Past service cost recognised
Past service cost - (non vested benefits)
Past service cost - (vested benefits) -
Average remaining future service tll vesting of the benefit -
Recognised past service cost - non vested benefits - =
Recognised past service cost - vested benefits -
Unrecegnised past service cost - non vested benefits -
X Amount o be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account
VO at end of period 4.23 280
Fair value of plan assers at end of period 518 1.93
P Funded status {1.14) {1187
Net Assees | Linbifity recognieed in the balance sheet (1.14) {1187
Xl Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account
Current service cost 107 (.94
NEt interest 7
Pust service cost - (non vested benefits) .
Past service cost - (vested benefies)
Currailments effect
serelements cffec
Unrecognised past service cost - non vested benetits
Arturtal (Gain) ¢ (Loss) recongnised for the period ‘ .
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account LO7 1194
X1 Other comprehensive income (OC)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized for the period 016 .11
Asset limit effect + =
Reiurn on plan assets excluding net interest (0.0 (0. 18}
Unrecognised actuarial (Gain) / Loss from previous period . .
Total actuarial (Guin) ! Loss recognisedin [OGH {0.07)

A0 s s

P ot .
4 e\
" ¥i
o, ) :.-;'_I'll
i el o
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TRIOCHEM PRODLCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. in Lakhs]
X1 Movements in the lability recognized in balance sheet
Upening net liablin 0.87 {046
Adjustment to opening bilance {0LET) (.46
Expenses as above L7 (194
Contribution paid : :
{Ocher comprenchsive income (OCT) 007 (00T)
Closing net Habiliry .14 187
X1y Schedule 1N of the Companes act 2013
Cuorrent liability 114 187
Mon - current liahility 309 1.94
XV Projected service cost 31st March 2025 1.15
Projected service cost 31st March 2024 1.05
vl Asset information Targer Total
Mlocatiion % Amouni
Cash and cash equivalents (1 H0%: -
Cramuity fund (The Trustees of the Scheme) LOD.H% 309
Dieht Security - Government bond 0,00%
Equiry Securities - Corporate debt securities 0. K%
Oher insurance contracts 0. 00%
Property (), (MY .
Total itemized assets 100, 309
AV Assumptions as @t A1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Mortality [ALM (2012-14) | [IALM (2002-14)
Ll it
Interest | Discount rate T 729
Hate of increase in compensation 4.00% 4.00%
Annual incrcase in healthoare costs - -
Future changes in maxiniem state healtheare benefits - -
Expected average remaining service 111,30 LB7
Retirement age 54 years
Exmployee attrition rate Age Do 45 : 2k
Age dbw 38 1%
XVII Sensitivity analysis DR Discount Rate ER: Salary Escalation Rate
WO DR+ 1% PVO DR-1% PVO ER + 1% VO ER - 1%
O 382 4.70 .71 341
XIX Expected pavont
Year Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected
Ourgo Chitgn Crotgo Outgo Ouign Ohuigo Six
first serond third fourth fifth Len yiuars
FVE) payoues 159 0,018 1R 1) {11 {L11 0.97
XX Assets liability comparisons
Year 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 51-Mar.22 31-Mar-23 51-Mar-24
VO atend of perind 6,73 10,25 L63 2.80 4.23
Plam assets 5,50 705 209 193 309
Surplus / {Deficit) i1.14) i3.20) 046 {057 {1.14)
Experience adjustments in plan asscts (0,12) {0.10) (003} (118 (LR
Weighted average remaining duration of Defined Benefit Obligation 11.54
Xx1 Narrations
1) Analysis of defined benefit obligation
The number of members under the scheme have remained sume.
[he total salary has decreased by 5.67% during the accounting perind.
The resultant ahiliry at the end of the perlod pver the beginning of the period ha:s d:umu:l—hl 51.12%
2} Expected rate of return basis \.T;__'_'h' ‘f\\ otle, ;\
EROA is the discount rate as at pe s \':Iluzti\i‘tﬁﬂc as per the accounting s:zndard \, Y\
[ = f 4 \ '-:]'| | AMumbaEL = I
B\ ]  qp & )
\ S f "
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TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs]

subject o insurer’s Surrender Policy

31 Description of the Plan Assets and Reimbursement Coaditions
100% of the Plan Assets is entrusted 1o The Trustees of the Scheme under their Group Graruity Scheme. The reimbursement is

4) Investment / Interest Risk

arrive at present value of the benefin

The Company is exposed 1o Investment | Interest risk if the return oo the invested fund falls below the discount rate used 1o

5) Longevity Risk

The Company is not exposed o risk of the emplovees living longer as the henefit under the scheme ceases on the emplover
separating from the employer for any reason

b) Risk of Salary Increase

The Company i exposed o higher liabiliy IF the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalatlon,

7) Discount Rate

change in discount rate

The discount rate has decreased from 7 29% o 7

09 and hence there i 3 decrease in Nability leading v actuarial gain due w)

33 Transition to lnd AS 116

The company has identified that there were no leases which are in the namre of Right-to-use and hence no lease lability & recogntsed in the

financial statements.

34 Balances of Trade Payables and Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation and consequential sdjustment, i any
35 The following are analytical ratios for the vear ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

[Particulars Numerator Denominator [ 2023-2024 [ 2022-2023 Variance
{a) Current Ratlo Current Assels Current Liabilites 10.24 538 o). 48%
ih) Return on Fdguity Froafin fur the veir less Mverage Shareholder's Equity {1 UMY (0.07) T61%
Rarnin Preterence Dividend, of any
fch Trade  pavables Purchases of Goods und Averape Trade Payables 4 iy 161 -11.88%
Tarnover ratio*® uther expenses
{dy Return on Capital Profit belore taxes and Capital Enployed = Net (00 {0,109 82%
emploved Finance Cos wirth 4 Deferred tax

liabilities+ Borrowing
() Return on Investment  Income generated from Time weighted average (04 (0]

investmenis IMVESTMETILS

36 Capital Management
(i) Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capiral management capital incudes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves ateributable o the
equity holders, The primary objective of the Company capital management is 1o maxmise the sharcholder value

The Company manages s capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
{inancial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio and s measured by net debt divided by Equity. The Company’s Debit is
clefined s long-term and short-ierm horrowings including current maturities of loag term borrowings and total equity (2s shown in balance

sheet) Includes sucd capiral and all other reserves

{il) Geearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Harrowing (14} (1.0
Less: Cash and Cash Eguivalems 341 ys.01
Net Debt (53.81) (95.91)
Total Equity 146202 1,159.72
Total Equiry and Net Debt 1,408.21 1,063.81
Gearing ratio . -

37T Segment Reporting
The Company is crtg;gn.l primarily in the bus:.ggu_u[ mmu[munny, and export of phamm‘r.'utital:i pnnium APls and chemicals. All other
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TRICCHEM PROTUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in Lakhs|
A8 Fair Value measurement-

The fatr value of Financid instrument as of March 30,2024 and March 30,2025 were as follows-
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31.2023 |Fair value Valuation

Hierarchy Technique
Assels-
Investment in Equine  Instruments 829.17 53289 | Level-1 Cruoted Market
through (] Price
Investment in Mumual Funds through I 408.99 | Level-1 Unguoted Market
FYTPL Price
Total 1,167 48 941,59

The management assessed thar Cash and Cash equivalents, Joans, other balances with Banks: trade receivables, rrade payables and other

currend labilites assers approsamate ther carrving amounts largehy due to the short-term maturitics of these iInstruments.

39 The previcus year figares have been regroupod reclassshod, wherever necessany' to conform to the curment presentation as per the schedule 11

of Companies Act, 2013
As per our report of even date anached.
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Form ISR -1

{:5EB circular Mo, SEBI/HO/MIRSE/MIBSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03, 2021 on Common and Simpiified Morms for
processing investor'ssapyice reguest by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN. K¥YC getaily and hominaton|

REQUEST FOR REGISTERING PAN, KYC DETAILS OR CHANGES / UPDATION THEREQF

[For Securities{Shares / Debentures / Bonds, ete,) of listed companies held in physical form)|

A1/ We, request you to Register [ Change / Update the following ({Tick ¥ relevant box) Date : ) /
| O PAN O Signature O Mobile Number

O Bank details O Registered Address 0O E-mall address

B. Security and KYC Details [ 1o ba filied in by the First Holder |

Mame of the Issuer Company Folio No(s)

Face value of Securities Number of Securities

Distinctive number of
Securities (Optional)

From

To

| E-mail Address

Mobile Number

C. I'We are suhmitﬁng documents as per Table below (lick+ as relevant, reler to he nslructions);

Namae(s) of the Security holder(s} in Capital as per PAN
Copies of PAM of all the Holderis) duty seif-atesiad wiih das 1o e ancoRed wih ihs Form

PAN

Tick any one [+)

PAN Linked Lo
Aadhaar -Y/N

Nate: * FaN shall be valid only if it is linkod to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any ather diote as moy be specified by CBOT
To know the idatul of your PAN Linked 10 Aadhaar check an this linke bttps:/fwnww incometax gov indied/ foportal

1 Yes [ No
2 Yas / No |
3 Yas | No
4 Yas /| No

Bank Account Details of First Holder

Name of the Bank &
Branch

IFSC

Bank Alc Mo, |

| Tick any one []- Acct type [ Savings OCurrent

O wro O NRE O Any other |

Mole: Original carcelied choque leal bebfing e name of the first hoider & mandaiory, la

passbock | slalamen ateslad by the Bank far registeding the Bark Agcount daiaass

ng whech byl pecumy holder snall submil copy of bane

Emnt Account Number

16 digit DPICL [

Also provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the Depositery Participant.

Authorization: | | We authoniss you (RTA) to update the above PAN and KYC detalls n my { our above foliois) (use Separato Anneru if axtra
space s requited) in which | /'we are the holder(s)
Declaration: All ths above facts and documeonts encicsed are fnue and comect

[ strike off wha! (s not applicatie |

Joint Holder - 2

Joint Holder - 3

I First Holder I Joint Holder - 1

M.

§
E|
:

Mole: If the address menthoned sbows differs from the address registersd with the Company

documents as specified in point (3] owerleal,

LINK

'

Pgt

ww address by submitting the

112




I'We are submitting documents as per Table below (Lick+ as relevant. refer to the instructions)

MNao.

Document/Information/Details

Instruction/Remark

PaN of {all} the (joint) holder(s)

Demat Account Number

| Pan copies of all the holder(s) duly self-attested with date 10 be enclosed
| PAN shall be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any date as

may be specified by the CEDT For Exemptions / Clarifications an PAN, please

reter to Objection Memo as specified in SEBI circular

Provide Client Master List [CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the
Depositary Participant,

Proof of Address of the first Holder

| Provide self attested copy of any ONE of the documents, issued by a Govt. Authority,

anly If there is change in the address;
O Clent Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, pravided by
the Depositary Particigant
o Valid Passport/ Registered Lease or Sale Agreement of Residence/
Driving License/Flat Maintenance Bill®
Utility bilis like Tetephone 3ill {only land ling), Electricity bill or
Gas bill - Not more than 3 menths old
O lcenuty card (with Photal / document with address, issued by
Central/State Government and its Departments, Statutory /
Regulatory Authonties, Public Sector Undertakings, Scheduled
Commercial Barks, Public Financial institutions
O For FR/sub sccount, Power of Attorney given by il [ sub-
account to the Custodians (which are duly notanted and [/ or
apostilled or consulansed] that gives the registered address
should be taken.
O The proof of address In the name of the spouse®
* Kindly provide additional self-attested copy of Identity Proof of the holder/
claimant.

Bank details

Provide the latest copy of the bank statement with details of bank name, branch,
account number and IFSC or Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of
first holder. Alternatively, Bank details avallable in the CML as enclosed will be

updated Inthe folio.

E-mail address

As mentioned on Form ISR-1, alternatively the E-mail address available in the
LML as enclosed will be updated in the folio

Maobile

As mentioned on Form 15R-1, alternatively the mobile number available in the
CML as enclosed will be updated in the folio

Specimen Signature

Prov:de banker's attestation of the signature of the holder(s] as per Form ISR =2
and Qriginal cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first bolder.

Nomination

Submit Form(s) as per any ONE of the following options.
0O 5H-13 For First Time Nommmation
O 5H-14 For Cancellation or Vanaton in Nomination
O 5H-14 and ISR-3 For Cancellation of Momination and to “Opt-Out”

O I5R-3 To "OPT-0Out” of Nomination or if No-Nomination is required

Note: All the above forms are aken avadable on our wirbsile

)
),

Ty

LINK

Pg: 212
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FormISR-2

{SEBI circular No: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03,2021)

Confirmation of Signature of Securities Holder by the Banker

1. Barnk Nameua.nd Branch
. 2. __E_!a_r}!_c_ggp_t:a_cf details
Postal Address
Mobile/Tel number
E-mail address

3. Bank Account number

4, Account opening date

5 Account holder's PAN Account Hn:]li:f_er's Name

1} 1)
i) i)
1 il
W) v

B. LatE;i-;ﬂﬂdin'grap'H of the account holder(s)

ul-fu-c"; QR ol ancullel) -Fn-qm r':..-.f

1 Holder Photo pihe Hslder Phoa iii)= Hulder Phaoto

vl Halder Phots

7. Account holder(s) details as per Bank RECf_ﬂ!‘_ﬂS:
a) Address

b} Mobile/Tel number
. ¢) Email address _
dl Signaturels) of the Holder(s) [

i) 5

EByal "-'I:u-.uqm.a ll:l:'|-||.|d|u.|.u.14 o Bl Bl
)

-~ (To be Mandatorily Filled by the Bank Official) -

Place: Name of the Bank Manager :
Date: Employee Code
Mobile / Tel no: Emall_id

LINK




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office: 4™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, :

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: infotecamphrav.com

Website: www triochemproducts com Corporate Identity Number: 1.24249MH1972PLC015544
Form No.: MGT - 11

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Regd. Folio No. *DF ID
| No. of Shares held *CL ID
| / We, being the member(s) of Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

1), Name & Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

2). Name & Address:

Email 1d: Signature or failing him / her

3). Name & Address:

Email Id: Signarure or failing him / her

and whose signature are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my /
our behalfl at the 52 Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 22™ day of
August, 2024 at 03.00 p.m. at 4* Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

SL. No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

‘z"35+‘

(Tick Mark the SL No. of Resolution of Which the Proxy is appointed)
Signed this day of 2024

Member's Folio/DP 1D-Client ID No.:

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix Revenue Stam




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, -

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150
Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: infot amphray com
Website: www trinchemproducts.com Corporate Identity Number: 1.24249MH1972PLC015544

BALLOT FORM

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1. Name and Registered Address of the
Sole/First named Shareholder

pk Name(s) f_:f the Joint Holder(s) (if any)
Registered Folio No./
DP ID No. and Client 1D No.

i | Number of Share(s) held

I / We hereby exercise my [ our vote(s) in respﬂét of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the 52%
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Thursday, 22™ August 2024, by sending my

~ ' our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate box below:
Item Resolution No.of | (FOR) | (AGAINST)
No. Shares | 1/We 1/ We
assent to dissent
the from the

resolution | resolution

ki To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial vear ended
March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Z To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora
(DIN: 00312080), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To approve the continuation of directorship of Mrs. Grace
Ramu Deor (DIN: (00312080), aged 76 vears as a ‘Non-
™ Executive, Non-Independent Director’ of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and had offered himself
for re-appointment.

4. Authorization for related party transaction w/s 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Place:

Date: (Signature of the Shareholder)

Note: Please read the instructions printed below carefully before exercising your vote

Instruction

1. The Ballot Form is provided for the benefit of the Members who do not have access to e-voting
facility.

2. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot, If a Member
cast votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall p
as invalid.

il f_:. I,"f \\I 'f:"'-l
| Mumbai ) B I|J
X 15

W2\ j=
lo< W s~y



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN; 400001, Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 g
Fax: (0091 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: infole amphray.com
Website: www tricchemproducts.com Corporite Identity Number; L24249MH1972PLCO15544

3. For detailed instruction on e-voting, please refer to the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM.

4. The Scrutinizer will collate the votes downloaded from the e-voting system and votes received
through post to declare the final result for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the
AGM.

Process and manner for Member opting to vote by using the Ballot Form

1. Please complete and sign the Ballot Form (no other form or photocopy thereof is permitted) and

send it so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Ragini

Chokshi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: FCS1436) at the office of Company's

Registrar & Transfer Agent.

The Form should be signed by the Member as per the Specimen signature registered with the

Company/Depositories. In case of joint holding, the Form should be completed and singed by the

first named Member and in hisher absence, by the next named joint holder. A power of Attorney

(POA) holder may vote on behall of a member, mentioning the registration number of the POA

registered with the Company or enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vote by Ballots not

permitted through proxy.

3. In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, ete. the duly completed Ballot Form should
be accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization.

4. Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in favor or against by putting the tick (Y) marks

in the column provided in the Ballor.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion of the share held by them in the paid-up

equity share capital of the company as on 14" August 2024 and as per the Register of Members of the

Company.

6. Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Wednesday, August 21, 2024

(05.00 p.m. IST). Ballot Form received after August 21, 2024, will be strictly treated as if the reply

form the Members has not been received.

A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed

duplicate Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date and time specified in serial no. 6

above.

8. Unsigned, incomplete, improperly, or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms will be rejected. A Form
will also be rejected if it is received torn, defaced, or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult
for the Scrutinizer to identify either the Member or as to whether the votes are in favor or against or if
the signature cannot be verified.

9. The decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Form and any other related matter shall be
final.

10. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the
AGM of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed 10 be passed on the AGM date subject to
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

1. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on the website of the
Company (www triochemproducts.com) and on Service Provider's website (www.cdslindia.com) and
communication of the same to the BSE Limited within 48 hours from mtmnd—u:ﬁ o of the AGM.
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, O
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001 Telephone: 00 91 (22) 22606 3150 .~
Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: infolt amphray.com
Website: www triochemproducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLCOT5544
Form No.: MGT-12
Polling Paper
(Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Company: Triochem Products Limited
Registered Office: 4* Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
CIN: L24249MHI1972PLCO15544

| BALLOT PAPER

Sr. No. Particulars | ~ Details
L. Name of the First named Sharcholder |
(in Block Letters) |
2 Postal address ]
3 Registered Folio No. / *Client 1D No.
(*applicable to investors holding shares in
dematerialized form)
4| Class of Share Equity Shares

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special Resolutions enumerated below by recording my
assent or dissent 1o the said resolution in the following manner:

No. | ltem No. No, of I assent I dissent
Shares 1o the from the
held by me | resolution | resolution

I. | To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 ogether with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Grace Ramu
Deora (DIN: 00312080), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

[ 3%

i To appn_wc the continuation of directorship of Mrs.
Grace Ramu Deora (DIN: 00312080), aged 76 vears as
a ‘Non-Exccutive, Non-Independent Director’ of the
Company, who is liable to retire by rotation and had
offered himsell for re-appointment.

1. | Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of |
| the Companies Act, 2013

-

Place:
Date: (Signature of the Shareholder®)
(*as per Company records)
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Registered Office: 4 Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, m
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info(t amphray. com

Website: www triochemproducts.com E-mail: investor{ivtriochemproducts.com

Corporate 1dentity Number: 1.24249MH1972PLC0O15544

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Ettending Member(s):

*Folio No.:

DP 1D No.:

Client ID No.:

No. of Shares:

I hereby record my presence at the 52™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 4* Floor,
Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, at 03.00 p.m. on Thursday, the 22™ August
| 2024.

Name of the attending Shareholder/Proxy

Signature of the attending

Shareholder/Proxy

Notes:
1) A Member / Proxy holder attending the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting
and hand it over at the entrance duly signed.
2) A Member / Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the meeting.
*Applicable in case of share held in Physical Form

Cut Here

ELECTRONIC YOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN User 1D (PAN / Sequence Number)

(Electronic Voting Sequence Number)

NOTE: Please read the complete instructions given under the Note (The instructions for sharcholders
voting electronically) to the Notice of Annual General Meeting. The Voting time starts from 19" August
2024 from 09.00 a.m, to ends on 217 August 2024 at (5.00 p.m. The voting module shall be disabled by

CDSL for voting thereafter
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